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CORPORATE PROFILE

QXA FN

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its s
a Group is a leading semiconductor group speC|aI|Z| g
design, development and sales of integrated circuits products and R
system solutions that enable a wide range of display and touch %ﬁ/ BERES %;;EZF%L‘
applications for smartphones, tablets, TVs/monitors, notebooks |:||:| ) @?E—I;PEEEM BFERER %ﬁ{%{ﬁ&
and other smart devices, including wearables, electronic shelf o HeExEER URITEXASRESRHEEZN
labels, healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well as BT AEIEER o

industrial appliances, etc.

VISION FE=

Provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display system REEARTRERUBRNEAMRER




PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

BISTABLE DISPLAY

Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology. It is a
display device illuminated by reflecting ambient light. Bistable
display offers paper-like readability, with features such as high
contrast, a wide viewing angle, reflectiveness, and readability under
sunlight. It is ultra thin and lightweight. Some bistable displays
can even be twisted out of shape. Moreover, system power can be
saved by the bistability characteristics, since the image remains on
display even after the panel power supply has been removed.

Solomon Systech develops the specialized Bistable Display Driver
Controllers to make this novel display technology a standard in low-
power-consuming monitors. These highly integrated drivers consist
of MCU interface for command and image data input, display RAM
to buffer image data and high voltage driving outputs. To minimize
system cost and space, the drivers have built-in DC/DC converter
to supply high voltage to drive bistable display. These drivers
can be applied to different bistable display technologies, such as
Electrophoretic displays (EPD) and more.

In order to allow customers to verify the functions and customize
for his own interest, we can support various development platforms
for easy testing and development, and the display driver with MCU
board and USB interface can drive and simulate customers’ own
design by PC programming.

Applications

loT Devices, Electronic Shelf Labels (ESL), Electronic Signages for
POP/POS, Smart Watches/Meters, Health Care Devices, Mobile
Displays, Indicators, Smart Cards, etc.
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MOBILE DISPLAY

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile display IC
solutions, including In-Cell Touch Display Driver IC (TDDI), TFT
Display Driver IC, STN Display Driver IC, MIPI Bridge IC, Display
Controller IC, LCD Touch Controller IC, Hi-speed interface IC
and Local Dimming MiniLED Backlight Product. They support
applications including Smartphones, tablets, wearable, gaming and
loT devices etc.

PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

BERET
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PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

OLED DISPLAY

As OLED display technology and its manufacturing process become
mature, more and more applications have adopted OLED as a smart
display. In addition, as the self-emissive OLED display is readable
under any light condition and inherent a wide operating temperature
range, it is suitable for outdoor applications even under severe
weather condition. Solomon Systech offers wide range of OLED
driver ICs to match with various kinds of applications.

Passive Matrix OLED Driver Controller

Solomon Systech continues to be the market leader in the Passive
Matrix OLED (“PMOLED?”) display IC, which has competitive edge in
small size mobile display applications. In addition to providing a full
range of PMOLED driver ICs from icon, mono and gray scale to full
color with highly integrated features, Solomon Systech continues to
expand its product portfolio by launching new PMOLED display ICs
with built-in Character ROMs.

With the success of Solomon Systech’s OLED driver technology,
the PMOLED drivers employ a proprietary driving scheme to reduce
system power consumption and enhance display performance. They
are ideal display solutions for portable devices.

Applications

Mobile phone, portable gadget, health care product, smart power
meter, industrial instrument, consumer appliance, remote control,
keypad, switch, etc.
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PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

LARGE DISPLAY KEHER

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of large display driver IC SRR EREMUZSEERARAKBEEREREH
solutions, including source drivers, gate drivers, a GIP controllerand FH#BRAEFE BREFEBES - MEEES -
power IC. They support applications including monitors, notebooks, GIPIE4|SE M EJRIC o X 3FHD ~ FHD ~ QHD »
large-size TVs, etc. in different resolutions of HD, FHD, QHD and UHD4K/8KE TR D PEWRERE - FHAK -

UHD 4K/8K. RRYIBREER -
Applications ER&EE
Monitors, TV, Notebooks, etc. FAREE EBR - ExAZE o
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PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

CUSTOM ICS

We have specialized in designing, testing and delivering custom IC
for digital, analog and mixed-signal applications. With more than 20
years of display IC experience, our turnkey services have provided
one of the most convenient and easiest ways from ASIC to SoC
production. Our in-house experts and manufacturing partners have
strived to ensure the production quality of the IC tailored for our
customers with the provision of state-of-the-art test facilities.

MiniLED/ULED Custom Driver Controller

Nowadays, the fast-response and vivid color MiniLED/pLED display
is very popular for high resolution devices. In response to the
demand for MiniLED/ULED displays, Solomon Systech provides
custom display ICs design solution. Solomon Systech has rich
experience in both passive matrix, amorphous/LTPS/Oxide-TFT
driver design and owns a library featuring state-of-the-art IPs that
are tailor-made for MiniLED/ULED display. Combined with compact
design Solomon Systech drivers are the ultimate MiniLED/puLED
display driver solutions for the applications.

Hi-Speed Interface IC

Pioneering in MIPI solutions for display, Solomon Systech offers a
series of proprietary MIPI bridge IC that support high-resolution,
high-speed and low-power display of smart devices. Among our
solutions which all support AMOLED, a-Si LCD, metal oxide TFT
and LTPS LCD panel technologies, we boast the lowest power
consumption MIPI 8-lane transmitter in the world. In addition to
MIPI bridge IC, Solomon Systech also provides other custom hi-
speed interface IC solutions such as eDP, QSPI and LVDS to tailor
to individual needs.

Local Dimming MiniLED Backlight Product

Local dimming is the most effective technology to improve the
performance of LCD displays. The distinction between black and
white becomes stronger and the contrast of the display will be
increased with this technique. Solomon Systech’s Local Dimming
MiniLED Backlight Products control LED backlight array effectively.
Displays can be easily upgraded by replacing the MiniLED backlight
array modules with our local dimming solutions. While utilising
existing LCD Panel and structure can help save development time
and cost, visual performance comparable with OLED display can be
achieved with lower cost.

Applications
Mobile phone, tablet PC, TV, VR/AR glasses, consumer appliance,
portable game console etc.
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(A) Results ¥%&

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

2023 2022
US$ million  US$ million Change %
BEER BEXR 2BAIM
Revenue HER 153.2 190.8 -19.8%
Gross profit EA 46.3 65.5 -29.2%
Gross margin (%) EFE(%) 30.3 343  -4.0% point
BOH
Profit attributable to owners of the parent RLATHEE ARERT 19.4 27.8 -30.1%
Earnings per share (US cent) BREM (1) 0.8 1.1
(B) Financial Position Bf#k%
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
US$ million  US$ million Change %
BEER EEET A -§ =5
Total assets BEE 157.4 158.3 -0.5%
Shareholders’ funds REER 126.9 109.2 16.3%
(C) Financial Ratios B it =
As at 31 December
R12831H
2023 2022
Current ratio FE = 4.96 3.02
Debt to equity ratio B E 0.013 0.013

RFIFERARAF
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure to present the Group’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

2023 was a year full of challenges and opportunities. The
high interest rates and inflation hindered the demand for and
development of consumer electronics. However, the Group
formulated a relatively prudent business strategy at the beginning
of the year to actively reduce inventory and maintain its efforts in
research and development. With the end of the interest rate hike
cycle and economic recovery, the semiconductor industry was
expected to bottom out in the second half of 2024. Facing the
unpredictable market environment, the Group actively developed
and innovated products in various areas, and established diversified
chip solutions and partnerships, to respond to market changes with
flexible strategies.

Industry returns to normal and technology
as driver of growth

Although the overall semiconductor market performance was
relatively flat in 2023, the industry players have showed resilience
under multiple pressures, and tapped into the artificial intelligence
(Al) and automotive application sectors to cater for the latest needs
of consumers. It is expected that the destocking cycle across the
semiconductor industry will end in 2024, and supply and demand
will gradually tend to achieve a balance. Therefore, the industry
is likely to recover from the second half of the year. Benefiting
from the recovery of end product demand, the International Data
Corporation (IDC) forecasts that the Asia-Pacific market will grow by
14% in 2024.

With an increase in the income of USA citizens and the acceleration
of emerging retail trend, retail giants will introduce ESL on a large
scale this year. Meanwhile, following the environmental, social
and corporate governance (ESG) trend, ESL will be used more
frequently, and accordingly the market size will gradually expand.
It is estimated that in 2024, the global ESL market size will reach
US$1.73 billion. Furthermore, driven by automotive intelligence and
networking, more and more automotive electronics will rely on chips
in the future, bringing stable demand for semiconductors in the long
term.
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Focus on technology and innovation to cope
with the ever-changing market

The semiconductor market is changing rapidly. With years of
extensive experience in the industry, the Group deeply understands
the importance of technology and innovation. Leveraging its own
scientific research and technology advantages, in combination with
external R&D cooperation, it has made remarkable achievements in
scientific research. As a world leading supplier of e-paper display
driver IC, we provide high-quality and reliable products to meet
the demanding requirements of customers. In the fourth quarter of
2023, the large-sized four-color label was successfully launched on
the market, which reflected the Group’s technological advantages
and established its leading position in this large market. Meanwhile,
as a forerunner in the application of mini/micro-LED, the Group
launched the world’s first small-sized passive matrix micro-LED
display driver IC — SSD2363 in 2023, further establishing its top
position in the global market share of PMOLED display driver IC
with technological innovation.

In view of the changing market, the Group actively expanded its
competitive advantages in some basic areas. In particular, the
Group has launched a series of highly competitive icon IC products
in 2023, which have significant price advantages with a wide range
of applications, covering displays up to the size of 4 inches. These
products will help the Group expand its market share in the large-
panel smart home appliances sector, while promoting the sales of
OLED display ICs.

Looking ahead, the semiconductor industry remains challenging
amid uncertain macroeconomic conditions. However, leveraging
the Group’s advantages such as strong R&D team, comprehensive
product coverage, diversified patent portfolio, extensive distribution
channels and an experienced management team with a global
perspective, we are cautiously optimistic that the semiconductor
market will bottom out in 2024. The Group will continue to strive
for excellence by formulating sustainable development strategies,
enhancing the team’s R&D capabilities and diversifying its business
and product portfolio to respond to the ever-changing consumer
demand, and explore various opportunities arising from the
digital economy, aiming to generate satisfactory returns to the
Shareholders.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my sincere
gratitude to shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, bankers
and business partners for their continuing support. The arrival of
the new era of digital economy will promote the further expansion
of the consumer market for semiconductors, and the industry will
face unprecedented competition and cooperation possibilities. We
will forge ahead and actively leverage our leading technological
advantages, and work together as a whole to prepare for a new
cycle of market demand.

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE
TR E R

Dear Shareholders,

Looking back on 2023, global economic activities faced severe
challenges. The inflation and high interest rate environment
significantly impacted the demand for consumer electronics. The
Group has set relatively conservative operating targets at the
beginning of 2023: focusing on active destocking and maintaining
the market share of the Group’s major products. Fortunately, the
gradual reduction in foundry costs of wafer fabs since the second
half of 2023 has alleviated some of the cost pressure on companies.
Despite the difficult external environment, the Group continued to
consolidate its technological leadership in the industry and timely
adjust its operating strategies in response to market changes to
maintain its business growth momentum and resilience.

Steady Growth in Shipment Volume
Offsetting Price Reduction

During the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “Year under
Review”), market demand for the Group’s products remained
stable and the shipment volume of the Group grew steadily, with
a year-on-year increase of 7.4% to approximately 336 million
units. However, affected by the price reduction in products, sales
revenue decreased by 19.8% year-on-year to US$153.2 million.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 30.1%
year-on-year to US$19.4 million as a result of the decrease in
sales revenue and the disproportionate decrease in average selling
prices compared to decrease in some costs of products. Earnings
per share for the year was 0.8 US cents. During the Year under
Review, the Group continued to ensure the stability of the supply
chain, control the inventory level and push forward with product
innovation, thereby strengthening its competitive advantages and
ensuring reasonable profit.

Leveraging our Technological Strengths and
Stabilizing our Business Foundation

In the light of the continued depressed demand for semiconductors
in 2023, the Group flexibly adjusted its product mix in line with
market conditions. While stabilizing its main business, the Group
developed new products such as passive matrix micro-LED display
driver, mini-LED backlight products, four-color display labels and
automotive integrated driver IC.

During the Year under Review, driven by the sales of existing
three-color display labels and the launch of large-size four-color
display labels in the fourth quarter, the shipment volume of new
display IC products increased by 9.8% year-on-year. Regarding the
OLED Display ICs business, the Group offers passive matrix OLED
(“PMOLED”) and mini/micro-LED products. The Group is the world’s
largest manufacturer of display driver ICs for PMOLED display
products in terms of shipment volume during the year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE

Regarding the Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs business,
during the Year under Review, the Group co-developed a
human interface display platform with several leading small-to-
medium-sized TFT-LCD panel makers and successfully entered
mass production in the second half of the year. Meanwhile, the
demand for the Group’s game console controller and MIPI Bridge
ICs remains steady, and the Group has successfully secured
manufacturing orders for 2024, which will bring sustained and stable
revenue and profit contributions to the Group.

Expanding the Scope of R&D to Speed Up
our Entry into Markets

The Group keeps abreast with technology advancement and market
trends and continues to focus on novel product development.
Leveraging its technological edge and intellectual properties, the
Group actively expands R&D collaboration to accelerate its entry
into target markets with a view to achieving promising returns in the
less explored areas.

During the Year under Review, the Group launched the world’s first
small-sized passive matrix micro-LED display driver IC — SSD2363
and was honored with the “Product Award - Best of the MCU/
Driver IC (Asia) of the Year” award at EE Awards Asia 2023, which
was the Product Award from EE Awards Asia won by the Group
for the second time in a row. As for the newly developed mini-LED
backlight solution, the Group is actively reaching out to customers
in different fields to launch products for specific applications.

As for electronic paper, the Group supported E Ink in developing
the Display IC Solutions that enables a four color spectrum display
for Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised platform for ESL
and retail signage application, which has been launched in the
second half of 2023. Meanwhile, we are developing large display
applications, including color electronic retail signage over the size of
20 inches, which is expected to commence mass production in the
first half of 2024. The Group is also partnering with internationally
renowned e-book brands to launch full-color e-book readers. With
the related display IC products delivered in the first quarter of 2024,
hopefully this would become a new driving force for our new display
IC segment revenue.

Regarding our Large Display ICs business, the Group has closely
followed the main trends in the future and started the development
of automotive driver IC solutions. The Group is cooperating with a
large display manufacturer in the design and development of the
first automotive-specific integrated driver IC, which targets mass
production in the fourth quarter of 2024 and will be applied to major
automotive systems in Mainland China.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE
TR E R

Future Prospect and Strategies

Looking ahead, against the backdrop of ongoing high interest rate,
the macro economy remains uncertain and demand growth in the
manufacturing industry remains weak. However, as the interest rate
hike cycle is expected to come to an end, the overall high inventory
in the industry will gradually improve and the market will begin to
recover in the second half of 2024. In addition, with the recovering
demand for consumer electronics, the market for personal electronic
devices is expected to rebound and thus bring about a turn for the
better for the display driver IC industry. The real benefits of the price
reduction measures of wafer fabs in 2023 to the companies will be
reflected in 2024, effectively alleviating cost pressure.

In response to the current market conditions, the Group launched
a series of icon ICs with competitive prices in 2023. This product is
applied to displays up to the size of 4 inches, which can help the
Group expand into the market of large-panel smart home appliances
and stimulate the sales of the OLED display ICs segment. The
Group will also strengthen the promotion of other newly developed
products including SSD2363 and mini-LED backlight solutions to
potential customers to expand the scope of product applications
and increase sales.

In 2024, with a cautiously optimistic attitude, we will continue to
focus on technology improvement and develop high value-added
products that meet market demand. We will also actively look for
opportunities to bring better returns to the Group.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all members of senior management and staff for
their hard work and dedication to their duties despite the uncertain
external environment in the past year. Also, | would like to express
my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their consistent support to and trust in the Group. Let
us work together to maximize value.

Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE D

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Business Review

In 2023, while the global economy was plagued by uncertainties
such as high interest rates and the Russia-Ukraine war which
affected the demand for consumer electronics, it still takes time for
the economy to fully recover. Despite the downward price pressure
on end products, the overall inventory level of the industry remained
high. Fortunately, the Group’s overall shipment volume was still
growing and the overall inventory has dropped by approximately
42% compared to the end of last year, which helped reduce
operating risks. In terms of costs, wafer foundries began to allow
room for price reductions in the middle of the year which slightly
alleviated the cost pressure on the Group, and the real benefits are
expected to be reflected in early 2024.

During the year under review, the Group’s shipment volume for
the year increased by 7.4% to approximately 336 million units
compared with 2022 (312.9 million units). However, sales revenue
decreased by 19.8% to US$153.2 million compared with 2022
(US$190.8 million) due to lower average product prices.

New Display ICs

New Display IC products mainly refer to bistable display products of
the Group. Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology
where the display device is illuminated by reflecting ambient light.

During the year under review, the shipment volume of the Group’s
new display IC products grew steadily. In addition to the sales of
existing three-color display labels, it was also driven by the new
launch of four-color display labels into the market in the fourth
quarter. The Group supported E Ink in developing the Display
IC Solutions for Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised
platform for ESL and retail signage application in 2021. This
significant technological breakthrough that enables a four-color
spectrum display has helped place the Group in a leading position
in this huge market. The large-size four-color display labels
supported by the Group’s IC products was launched on the market
in the fourth quarter of 2023, and other sizes of the four-color
display labels are expected to be launched subsequently.

Affected by the change from three-color to four-color displays and
market competition, the average selling price of the Group’s new
display IC products dropped, resulting in a decrease in revenue.
The sales of three-color display labels slowed down as retailers
waited for the launch of the new generation four-color display. The
high level of inflation and strong US dollar have also affected the
incentives of some retailers in Europe and Asia to install ESL.

ESL provides flexibility in price update and facilitates efficiency
improvement and easy stock management. It not only reduces long-
term costs, but also reduces the carbon footprint of merchants,
meeting the global trend of paperless for sustainable development.
ESL is not only prevailing in Europe and North America, but it is also
becoming an emerging trend in other Asian countries. The Group
has been a pioneer in developing ESL ICs for many years, and our
customers include many of the world’s top-ranked supermarkets. To
further tap into the markets of e-Signage and e-Reader applications,
the Group commenced mass production of the AMEPD driver IC
for Advanced Color e-Paper (ACeP) products in 2022, which is
expected to have a wide application in 2024, such as for e-books.
In addition to ESL, the Group is also committed to expanding the
application of IC products to other areas, such as translators and
large retail signage applications. As global businesses are becoming
more environmentally conscious, the Group believes that energy-
efficient displays will be inevitable for future development, and the
Group shall move towards multi-color and large-size displays.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
EBEOBERRE

OLED Display ICs

The Group offers a wide range of OLED display driver ICs to match
with various applications, including PMOLED display products and
mini/micro-LED products. The Group is the world’s number one
PMOLED display driver IC player with a dominant market share in
terms of unit of shipment during the Year under review.

The Group provides a full range of PMOLED driver ICs from icon
to matrix, mono and grey scale to full color with highly integrated
features and are ideal display solutions for portable devices. During
the year under review, the Group launched a series of icon ICs with
competitive prices. The products are applicable to displays ranging
from 1 to 4 inches, which can help the Group expand into the large
display market for smart home appliances. With the increasing
popularity of smart home appliances in the market, it is expected
that demand for PMOLED smart home solutions and the Internet of
Things (loT) will continue to grow in the future.

The Group is a forerunner in the application of mini/ micro-LED. Our
mini-LED DDI solutions for 50” to 100” indoor signage display have
been in mass production since 2018 and are used in the curved
signage display in the underground and subways in the UK and the
US. The Group has launched the world’s first small-sized passive
matrix micro-LED display driver IC - SSD2363 during the year,
which can be applied to next-generation high brightness displays
of 3 inches or less for wearable devices, home appliances and
industrial appliances. The Group is actively approaching various
types of customers to seek application of our products in different
types of high value-added projects, such as automotive devices.

Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs

The Group provides a wide range of Mobile Display and Mobile
Touch IC solutions that is ever-expanding, including In-Cell Touch
Display Driver IC, TFT Display Driver IC, STN Display Driver IC, MIPI
Bridge IC and Display Controller IC, which support industrial and
consumer applications, such as smartphones, tablets, wearables,
gaming devices and loT devices.

The Group pioneers the MIPI solutions for display with a series of
proprietary features that support high-resolution, high-speed and low-
power display of smart devices. During the year under review, the
Group co-developed a human interface display platform with a number
of leading small-to-medium-sized TFT-LCD panel makers, which has
successfully entered mass production in the second half of the year.

With profound expertise in TDDI technology, the Group designs
game console controller ICs that enable more accurate controls,
faster response and longer battery runtime. The demand for the
Group’s game console controller and MIPI Bridge ICs remains steady,
providing a sustainable revenue base for the Group. We are also
actively researching and developing the application of mobile display
and mobile touch ICs to a wider range of areas, such as the newly
developed mini-LED backlight solution of the Group. We are reaching
out to customers who produce different kinds of end products to
gather and understand their needs so as to develop products for
specific applications, including mobile or automotive electronics.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Large Display ICs

The Group provides a wide range of large display driver IC solutions
that support various applications, including commercial displays,
high-end gaming monitors, medium and large color ESLs and smart
TVs of various sizes.

Looking back on 2023, the accumulation of inventory after the
pandemic, coupled with the high interest rate environment that
suppressed overall corporate and consumer spending, cooled
down demand for the large-size display market. A steady price
rise of display panels, panel makers still experienced declining
demand and losses, which led to a freeze in sales of large-size
display driver ICs. Nevertheless, since the second half of the year,
as we continued to improve our products, demand for some major
products has shown signs of gradual recovery.

During the year under review, the Group carried out mass
production of a number of mainstream new products for
international brands in conjunction with panel makers, including
projects for 23.8-inch UHD gaming monitors with a high-refresh-
rate of 100Hz, 43-inch smart FHDTVs and 32-inch HD entry-level
smart TV. The Group has also been authorized by a major Chinese
display manufacturer to develop a new generation point-to-point
(P2P) high-speed interface display driver IC, which is expected to
commence trial production in the third quarter of 2024. In addition
to the existing IC solutions for medium and large displays, the
Group has identified the main trends in the future and started the
development of automotive driver IC solutions. The Group signed
a memorandum of understanding on strategic cooperation with
a major Shenzhen display manufacturer in July 2023 and began
cooperation in the design and development of the first automotive-
specific integrated driver IC. The product targets mass production
in the fourth quarter of 2024 and will be applied to major automotive
systems in the PRC.

Product Development

The Group stresses the importance of novel product development to
keep abreast of the rapid technology advancement and fast-moving
trends. By leveraging our technological edge and pool of intellectual
properties, we continue to expand our scope of collaboration. This
strategy will enable our accelerated presence in the targeted fronts,
leading us to the less explored market with promising rewards.

During the year under review, the Group launched the world’s first
small-sized passive matrix micro-LED display driver IC — SSD23683.
The product features high brightness and can be applied to three-
inch or less 16.7M color display according to customers’ personal
needs. As for the newly developed mini-LED backlight solution of
the Group, we are actively reaching out to customers in different
fields to launch products for specific applications.
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As for electronic paper, the Group supported E Ink in developing the
Display IC Solutions that enables a four color spectrum display for
Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised platform for ESL and
retail signage application, which has been launched in the second
half of 2023. To further expand the application of the Group’s IC
products in electronic paper, the Group is developing large display
applications in addition to ESL, such as large color electronic retail
signage of over 20 inches, which is expected to commence mass
production in the first half of 2024.

The Group is also cooperating with three internationally renowned
e-book brands to launch full-color e-book reader tablets, and has
delivered the related display IC products in the first quarter of 2024.
The shipment volume is expected to keep growing in the future.
E-books have the advantage of being environmentally friendly,
easy to carry, and friendly to the eyes. As the new generation of
color e-books are able to offer a richer digital reading experience
in comparison to the traditional black and white e-books, it is
expected to become a new trend.

Awards and Recognitions

In 2023, the Group was honoured with the “Product Award — Best
of the MCU/Driver IC (Asia) of the Year” award at EE Awards Asia
2023 for its PM-micro-LED display driver SSD2363, which was
the Product Award from EE Awards Asia won by the Group for the
second time in a row. Being the world’s first PM-micro-LED display
driver, the award-winning display driver SSD2363 is targeted at the
next generation of high-brightness and high-resolution display with
high-speed data transmission for wearables, home appliances and
industrial applications.

Outlook

Against the backdrop of ongoing high interest rate, the macro
economy remains uncertain and weak demand growth poses
challenges to the manufacturing industry. An upturn in the market is
still awaited. One thing is for sure, destocking will continue for the
industry in 2024. Upon total depletion of the inventory accumulated
during the pandemic, the supply chain is expected to return to
normal. On the other hand, wafer fabs have started to lower the
average price since the second half of 2023, which is expected to
have a positive impact on the gross profit of the Group in 2024.

As the Group started the official partnership with well-known
e-book brands to launch color e-book readers, the Group’s new
display IC segment revenue will gain new impetus. Regarding the
OLED segment, we are confident that the series of competitively
priced large-size icon ICs launched in 2023 would allow the Group
to expand into the market of large-panel smart home appliances.
We will also strengthen the promotion of other newly developed
products including SSD2363 and mini-LED backlight solutions to
potential customers to expand the scope of product applications and
increase sales.

Although the market recovery is slower than expected, we have
kept up our effort. We will be cautiously optimistic and continue to
focus on technology improvement while keeping abreast of market
developments to develop high value-added products that meet
market demand. We will also actively look for opportunities to bring
better returns to the Group.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 302 A2023%F12831H » "NEB L HI02HKE T
employees’ (2022: 294 employees). Of the total workforce, around (20224 : 294%Z B T) o B E T FH37%EE
37% were based in Hong Kong head office with the rest located in EHEBEAWERER  HHSIHBETIEAERAE
Mainland China and Taiwan.
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e 237 engineering employees
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OUR PEOPLE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
RANEIRERHEGEE
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14%

. Master’s Degree & above . Bachelor's Degree . >20 years . 16-20 years . 11-15 years

BBk L LSt Sivd >205 16-205 11-15%F
. Diploma / Certificate . Others . 6-10 years 1-5 years <1 year
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* 34% Master’s Degree or above e Employees with an average of about
34% FFE LRI EBA 14 years of working experience
BT FHEEN4F LR

e 302 employees worldwide as at 31 December 2023 * 87% Bachelor’s Degree or above

M2023F12A318 » 2HEEFH302ZE8T

87% FFB Lo IA B

About 87% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor’s degree or XEFHNITHEIHEEE2LTENHULERF
above, and around 34% have earned a master’s degree or higher H34%IFELENHULERF KEFBEEE
academic qualifications. The Group’s emphasis on R&D is also GBI I{LTIRMIESETHES D » 65%H
reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 65% are engineers B I AEIERETRERMNIEN - BES
who specialize in product design and development. The entire team T F ¥R Y14F TELEE o

has, on average, around 14 years of working experience.

The Group also had a testing center located in Mainland China, with ZXEBZHZRAE —BNRPE R 2B = PO
a total workforce of 67 employees.

HHAB7TEET -

Note': Data excludes testing center in Mainland China

E

BE T B R A E A 2 B

RPXERERAR | 2023FFH 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

OUR PEOPLE AND

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Training & Development

At the Group, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous
Learning”, and to inspire, encourage and develop our staff. In
2023, the Group dedicated a total of over 10,354 man-hours to
training and development, covering technical and soft skill training.

Apart from in-house training, the Group has also encouraged and
sponsored employees to take external job-related courses.

Employee’s Well-being

We put more resources in health, safety, and wellness of our
employees as we care about their well-being. Apart from providing
a safe working environment and health insurance covering medical,
disability, accidental and life benefits to eligible employees, we also
aimed at assisting employees to strike a healthy work life balance
and to promote team spirit. In 2023, the Group organized a range
of activities for employees to achieve these targets. The Group
also arranged leisure activities inviting our employees to participate
together with their family members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding
employees and attracting new talent with the right incentives,
in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests with the
Company. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams
in appreciation of the order winning on our new products. The
Group also offers cash reward schemes (including KPI Incentive
for recognizing the attainment of annual KPI on both the team
and individual levels), and ES1 MP Award for new products which
win for mass production with the first successful sample attempt.
Patent Awards are in place to encourage and reward technological
innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to reward
employees of long standing.

Details of the remuneration of employees, bonus and share option
scheme are disclosed in relevant section of the Directors’ Report,
and note 6, note 10, note 11 and note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and ensures that it becomes part
of the daily operations of the Group. The Group’s Environmental,
Social, Governance (“ESG”) working committee has monitored the
Group’s performance in the areas of employees, the marketplace, the
environment and the community during 2023. The Group’s ESG Report
for 2023 has been published separately on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk on the same date as this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue and Results Overview

The Group recorded a decrease of about 19.8% in revenue to
US$153.2 million during the year (2022: US$190.8 million). With the
global supply chain is returning to normal and the supply of wafer
stabilised, the group adjusted the average selling price of the our
products accordingly, which lead to decrease in revenue.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was reported at US$19.4
million, representing a decrease of approximate 30.1% from
US$27.8 million in 2022. Earnings per share were 0.8 US cents,
down 0.3 US cents from 2022.

Despite the decrease in the profit attributable to shareholders, the
Group was still able to manage a stable growth in total IC shipment
in 2023 when comparing to 2022, which shows the Group’s
capability to maintain a stable market share despite the unfavorable
market condition. The Group’s product development strategies
coping with market needs has in turn led to the stable growth in IC
shipment, and we will also continue our on-going effective stringent
cost control measures to enhance operational efficiency.

Gross profit

Gross profit of US$46.3 million and gross margin of 30.3% were
recorded during the Period (2022: US$65.5 million and 34.3%,
respectively). The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin
was mainly attributable to the decrease of average selling price
which was disproportionate to some of the costs of the Group’s
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue/Gross Profit
for the year ended 31 December

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

for the year ended 31 December
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| Revenue Gross profit L Profit attribtable to owners Earnings per share
SHERE EF of the parent BREF
KA TEE AL GF
Costs and Expenses BRARBEX
The Group’s total expenses (including product R&D costs, S&D ANEEH £2023F12A31HILEENEARX
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses) for the (EREERWERLR -HERIHEE X T

year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to about US$30.2 million
(2022: US$39.7 million), representing a decrease of 23.9% as
compared to that for the year 2022.

The Group is committed to investing in product R&D and business
development. R&D spending. The Group has utilised the resources
on the new product introduction and technology development
mainly on the products that more adopt with the global market trend
and on more viable businesses, therefore resulting in an overall
reduction in R&D expenditure. During the year under review, the
product R&D costs amounted to US$17.8 million (2022: US$27.1
million) representing a decrease of US$9.3 million and a decrease
of 34.2%. The product R&D costs to sales ratio for the year ended
31 December 2023 was 11.6% (2022: 14.2%), a decrease of 2.6
percentage points. Apart from that, USD is still strong against all
other major currencies during the year, this driven down the R&D
salary costs in the Taiwan and the PRC when translating their salary
expenses from local currencies back to USD. Still, the Group has
set a bold target in R&D for innovation to solidify its leading position
in IC display industry.

S&D expenses were US$3.3 million (2022: US$4.2 million) whilst the
S&D expenses to sales ratio was 2.1% (2022: 2.2%).

Administrative expense amounted to US$9.1 million (2022: US$8.3
million), increased by 10.5% as compare to that of 2022. The
increase was mainly due to the rent and management fee concession
from lessors decrease, depreciation of the additional fixed assets
in computer equipment and software, and business travel related
expenses for business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains - Net

During the year under review, other income amounted to US$0.9
million (2022: US$2.0 million), decreased by US$1.1 million, which
was mainly due to decrease in government subsidies in 2023.
Government subsidies mainly consisted of grants for the product
R&D projects totalling US$0.5 million in 2023 (2022: US$1.9 million).

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Parent

During the year under review, the Group reported a profit attributable
to shareholders of US$19.4 million, as compared to a profit
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022
of US$27.8 million. The main reasons for the decrease in profit
attributable to shareholders in the year 2023 were because of the
decrease in sales revenue, which was mainly due to the decrease
in average selling price of the Group’s products, which in turn lead
to decrease in profit. The Group will continue the on-going stringent
cost control measures on overall expenses to maintain stable profit.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
US$’000 US$'000
FEx E
Current assets mENEE 148,598 146,126
Current liabilities mEaE 29,974 48,387
Net current assets mEEEFE 118,624 97,739
Current ratio VLIRS 4.96 3.02

The Group’s current ratio was 4.96 as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 3.02), reflecting a strong liquidity in its financial
position. Working capital position of the Group remains healthy.

The Group does not have any significant interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and is in net cash position. The Gearing Ratio is 0.013
(2022: 0.013).

Treasury Management

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to
execute treasury management policy, review the overall investment
portfolio and monitor the performance on a regular basis to increase
the yield of cash reserves. The Team conducts regular review
meetings or teleconferences with individual external portfolio
managers and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and
monitor the investment performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
5t %5 [ 8

Total cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of the Group
were US$86.3 million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: US$51.6
million), of which US$6.0 million denominated in US dollars (2022:
US$6.0 million) were pledged to banks to secure for general banking
facilities for general operation purpose. Cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits of the Group were mainly denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no major borrowing
other than a bank loan in connection with a PRC subsidiary for
working capital financing amounting to US$1.7 million, which was
denominated in Renminbi. The amount was fully repaid before the
date of this annual report.

Most of the Group’s trade receivables and payables are quoted in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors the movement of foreign
exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain favorable exchange
rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group
had not entered into any major derivative instruments to hedge
against foreign currency exposure in operation as the Board
considered this exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2023, capital expenditure of the Group was
US$1.1 million (2022: US$2.5 million).

As at 31 December 2023, capital expenditure contracted for but
not yet incurred was approximately US$2.3 million (2022: US$0.7
million).

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to US$14.0
million (2022: US$12.9 million) to banks in connection with banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million (2022: US$8
million) were utilised as at 31 December 2023 as bank guarantees.

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital
commitment or contingent liability.

Significant Investments Held

During the year under review, there was no significant investments
held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments and capital assets.

Acquisition and Disposal of Material
Subsidiaries and Associates

The Group did not acquire or dispose of any material subsidiaries
and associates during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any other charge
on its assets except for time deposits amounted to a total of US$6.0
million (2022: US$6.0 million) pledged to banks for securing banking
facilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 302
employees*. About 37% of the workforce were based at the Hong
Kong headquarters, with the rest located in Mainland China and
Taiwan. The Group also has a testing center located in Mainland
China, with a workforce of 67 employees. Employee salary and
other benefit expenses decreased to approximately US$22.1
million during the year under review from approximately US$24.9
million in the year 2022, which represented a decrease of 11%. The
decrease was attributable to the decrease in the average number
of employees. The Group’s remuneration were determined based
on the performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to
the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong
Kong employees) or the government-managed retirement pension
scheme (for Mainland China and Taiwan employees), medical and
other insurances, discretionary bonus is also awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance.

*

Data excludes the testing center in Mainland China
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EESREREEE

Chairman

Mr. MA Yuchuan, aged 58

e  Chairman of the Board: since May 2019
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2018
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

e  Graduated from Zhejiang University, the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in semiconductor physics and devices

° Extensive experience in the semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:
e Director of Huada Semiconductor Company Limited
e Director of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.

Former appointments include:

e Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project
division of business management department, division chief
of integrated circuit & components division of corporate
development department, vice general manager of integrated
circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

° Director of Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code:
688107) * APS (Shanghai) Ltd. * China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 0085), Hua Hong
Semiconductor Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange with stock code: 1347), Shanghai Belling
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600171), CEC Huada International Co.
Ltd., Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Micro
One Electronics Inc. and Chengdu Sino Microelectronics
Technology Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Director
Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 58

CEO: since January 2020

Acting CEO: 2019

Appointed to the Board: 2019

Executive Director

Chairman of the Investment Committee

Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules

Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Skills and experience:

Graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering

Received a master of business administration degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand and a master of
arts degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

A chartered engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry

Former appointments include:

Corporate VP and Head of Advanced Display Business of the
Group

Held senior management position in Motorola Inc and worked
in Hong Kong, the USA and Canada

Asia Pacific Head of RFWaves Ltd. in Israel
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEERENEEE

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Hui, aged 41

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2021

Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Master of science in engineering in control systems from the
University of Sheffield

Master of business administration from the University of Hong
Kong

Current appointments include:

Director, development and planning department, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Director, Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd
Director, China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd

Director, Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171)

Chairman, Alpha Power Solutions Ltd.

Former appointments include:
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Various positions including strategic manager and professional
manager of the development and planning department in
Huada

Marketing manager, Brite Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Technical marketing manager, Shanghai Huahong Grace
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation

Various engineering positions and technical marketing manager
in Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Non-executive Directors
Dr. KANG Jian, aged 42

Non-executive director
Appointed to the Board: 2021
Member of the Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

Doctor of philosophy in computer science granted by De
Montfort University in the UK

Master of business administration degree granted by China
Europe International Business School in the PRC

Current appointments include:

Head of the investment management department of Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171).

Director, CEC Huada International Co., Ltd.
Director, Advanced Manufacturing EDS Co., Ltd
Director, Senodia Technologies (Shaoxing) Co., Ltd

Former appointments include:

Director of CEC Capital Management Co., Ltd.

Director, China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings
Company Limited

Director of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Supervisor of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited

Supervisor of China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd.
Supervisor of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.
Director of the Shanghai branch office of China Fortune Land
Development Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange with stock code: 600340)

Various positions including as a senior consultant, director, vice
general manager and general manager of the Shanghai branch
office of CCID Consulting Company Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 2176)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEERENEEE

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Kong, aged 56

Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: 2023
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from The City University of Hong Kong with a
master’s degree in business administration

Obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

Fellow member of each of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute,
and a CFA charter holder of The Chartered Financial Analyst
Institute

Current appointments include:

Advisory Committee Member of The College of Professional
and Continuing Education of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

The Convenor of Working Party on Seminars of Accounting
Training Board under The Vocational Training Council
Co-founder of Impacts Technology Limited which is principally
engaged in the business of development and provision of
interactive e-learning solutions to corporates

Independent Non-executive Director of APT Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

Former appointments include:
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Held chief financial officer and various senior management
positions in companies whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange

Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong

Member of The Financial Reporting Review Panel of The
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Member of The Accountancy Training Board under The
Vocational Training Council

Honorary advisor to Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2023

BYFHTES

==
oA

-

B

B1E

K &% - 565%
BAEBITES
EEAEE 20235
EREEREE
REZEEZE

SEES

EENEBAT AR BEIBEERLTE
i

REBEIRBESEFEELENY

SHLRETAMAE (ACCAL - &BE
SEIAE - REMKEE HETETaA
T HEBHFLRREASEREBARA
BAERECEREE  IRFERFEH
DA HEHB 2B RO ATE B

BuEE:
EBEIARBEXREEHAERERE

BEERE

BEIREEAEIREESBET X
MeaEIENMEEEA

Impacts Technology LimitedZ 3t [E £l %
A BAREERERACERBRREME
BEFEEMATRZER
BREBDEFROVERARNEULFEHITE
E

BuaE
EREBRAERLTZAREETEEG
BERZESREEBQ

ACCAEEBRE2ERE
S RMBEREDMBERRIZSEK

=
BEIRFBEFHEIREESERE
EROBRPTMEEARADKERRD



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)
Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 74

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2020

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, member of
Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Received his bachelor of science degree in electrical engineer
from the University of California, Davis, the USA

Received his master of science degree in electrical engineering
and doctor in electrical engineering both from the University of
Illinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA

Taught at the University of lllinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA
for 3 years

Senior position for development and design of integrated
circuits in Intel Corporation for over 10 years

Current appointments include:

Founder and director of Apt Electronics Co., Ltd.
Member of the Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-
industrialisation

Former appointments include:

Professor and the head of at the Department of Electronic
and Computer Engineering, the director of Nanoelectronics
Fabrication Facility of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”)

Dean of the School of Engineering of HKUST and a chair
professor over the years

Deputy President and Provost, a chair professor of Electronic
& Information Engineering (EIE) department of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (“HKPU”) and a council member of
HKPU until his retirement from HKPU in March 2020

Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited and the chairman of its
technology committee, a director of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, and a member of the
Vocational Training Council.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing, aged 73

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2023

Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from Harvard University with a doctoral research
degree in applied physics in 1978

Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Fellow of The Optical Society of America

Fellow of The Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
Elected Member of The Asia Pacific Academy of Materials
Fellow of the Society for Information Displays

Elected member of The Hong Kong Academy of Engineering
Science

Fellow of the National Academy of Inventors

Received extensive honors and awards and has published
numerous papers in the field of information display

Current appointments include:
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Visiting Professor of the Department of Electrical and Electronic
Engineering at The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Save as disclosed in this annual report, each of the Directors (i) has
no relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders (as defined respectively in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, (ii) is not interested or deemed to
be interested, nor has short positions, in shares, underlying shares,
or debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, (iii) does not hold any
positions within the Company or other members of the Group, and
(iv) has not been a director of any listed companies in the past three
years. Moreover, none of the Directors has been involved in any of
the events under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Founder and Chairman Emeritus

Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 67, is the Founder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 46, Finance Director and Company
Secretary. Mr. Yu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2022. Mr. Yu
is also the Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Senior Management” for Mr. Yu's biography.
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Senior Management

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
Please refer to the details of Executive Directors in page 25

Dr. WU Wenchi, aged 55, Vice President, Design Engineering.
Dr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining
the company, Dr Wu was assistant general manager of Socle
Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in
electrical engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 59, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources
Manager. Ms. Lo holds a master degree in Human Resources &
Training from University of Leicester, the UK, and has over 30 years
of human resources management experience.

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 46, Finance Director, Company Secretary,
and Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Yu holds a degree in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
in the Association of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia
and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. YU has more than 20 years of experience in capital market
management, Initial Public Offering, financial reporting and financial
management. Before joining the Company, he was a chief financial
officer and company secretary of a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Apart from that, he also worked in an
international audit firm for approximately eight years. Mr. YU is
currently an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 1327.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 58, Planning & Customer Services
Director. Mr. Wong joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as
Business Process Solutions Manager. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree in Information Systems Management from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, and has over 30 years
customers’ service and logistics management experience in
semiconductors industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company culture

Our vision is to provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display
system.

There are three pillars that serve as the foundation of our company
culture to support our pursuit of our vision:

Innovative: We continue to innovate and create new
technologies that will improve our product offerings. From
electronic shelf labels (ESL), e-Paper display driver ICs to touch
and display drive integration, we have continuously invested
in our R&D, and sought to secure first-mover advantage in
new markets. Currently we possess over 690 patent registered
worldwide.

Talent-oriented: People are critical to our success. We have
built a highly qualified and experienced workforce: as of 31
December 2023, among our employees, 87% hold a bachelor’s
degree or above, and 34% have earned a master’s degree
or higher academic qualifications; 65% are engineers who
specialize in product design and development. To retain talents
and encourage them to thrive, we offer various incentives such
as bonus and share options to our employees.

Responsive: Semiconductor technologies are ever evolving.
We always keep an eye on the latest development to capture
business opportunities. We also closely monitor the trends
in material and logistics costs with a view to maintaining the
competitiveness of our products.
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Corporate governance practices

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and continuously improve these standards, which the Group
considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity of its business
operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the Company,
and good corporate governance is indispensable for long-term
business success and sustainable performance of the Group.
The management also actively and constantly observes the latest
corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and overseas,
particularly those in the UK and the USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices, transparency and accountability. The
Company has complied with all the applicable Code Provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023. To
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in the Code where
appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate
culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the code for
Directors’ securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023. Regarding the
shares held by the Directors, the details are listed in the “Report
of the Directors” from pages 59 to 74 of this Annual Report.
Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.3, the Company established its
own written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant
employees conformed to the Group’s own guidelines throughout the
year 2023.

34

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2023

EREAER
EEBNESARERMERALRRLE K
FRLEER  URTHECZZKE
RSB EEOHEARBREEY

ARBELNEEEE MRFNEXERR
EUAEERBEZ KD AHRN —IR
EENIBNEEHESFBEBH KEIE
REREE) WERHEEERNER -

AABRMRERTESREL  HAEE—
@E*m%%é BERHAIEE - BRIV
BEESR BEEHELBEE - §£2023F128
ma¢$§W KT —EEF 1R B 62
Cififiz 2R (AR EER
BSFAMRS - BHEFESKFENEEERZE
AARECEMTHAPEENEZREERST
Al o ftih s RABTEHELZEER EES
r;#mmixmo

EENREZFRS
DR RN LR AHSCIF M £ H 84T

ABBETESRGNRESTR ((FEFH )
ERESETESZRZNTA - 2BEFCH

AABBERAMENEE2023F12831H LEF
ERN—EBEETJEZEESAFREANEE - MESFT
BENRHAMS  BEFEBNIRAERSES
BAEZ[EBSEHRE |8 - RBFAMEE
CA3k  AAFCHREEREBEE T WK
BEEANTE %HTHR BRSNS

BRI THRESFARROEMISS - R2023%F
2F ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ;leﬁ BIAKE

Z BBl °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long-
term value for shareholders, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

e  Strategy and management

e Group structure and capital

e  Financial reporting and control
e Internal controls

° Major contracts

e  Corporate communications

° Board membership and other appointments
e  Remuneration

e  Authority and delegation

e  Corporate governance

e  Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate
primarily to the daily operations of the Group are delegated to the
management under the supervision and leadership of the CEO.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one
Executive Director, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The size and composition
of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account
the scope and nature of the Company’s operations, to ensure that
the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision-making. The biographical details
of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any, are set
out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
24 to 32 of this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except
as disclosed in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior
Management”, none of the Directors has any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among members
of the Board and the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Accordingly, the Board considers that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the Listing
Rules.

The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate
persons as members of the Board for the role. Since 2013, the
Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which has been
published on the Company’s website for better transparency and
corporate governance.
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The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse HREESREEER RIS TeEELSE
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural % - Fﬁ%{%%‘% EZEKE - A ABRE
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background, F&{EEISN %@?ETEW:EEEM'_{%U CFE S XE
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. HESEREEK BRABERAEZENEERITAEZES
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that &EHNERIMERE -

the selected candidates can bring to the Board.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has ZEEEmUEZESEESE J’?‘éiﬂﬁk%ﬁ » DU&E

delegated specific functions to four Board Committees. The E%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁkf{% FTEEEZESAEX

principal Board Committees are the Audit Committee, Remuneration Z&& - HMEZSE - REZE Z8
g FRBHENNT

g 7V
Pk
s I
i

Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment Committee,
details of which are as follows:

Date of Date of
first appointment last re-election
to the Board as Director Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Investment
Position Gender  Ethnicity hge EREZER Bi-REEER Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee
Bit kB Fk EZEENAN  AESHAH EhZEe  EMZEE  RYZEE  REzEE
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Executive Director/CEQ
lmond Male Chingse 5820 March 2019 22 June 2022
g5t HAES/RES ] EA 2019538208 2022568228 c
Mr. Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director/
Chairman Male Chinese 58 14 March 2018 22 June 2022
E3)l%% FUTESER E EIN 201838 14R 2020268228 C |
Mr. Wang Hui Non-executive Director ~ Male Chinese 411 April 2021 23 June 2023
IBfE FufEs g I 2R1E4R 1R 203E6R23R i |
Or. Kang Jian Non-executive Director ~ Male Chinese 42 3 November 2021 22 June 2022
3] hy FinEs % E\ 201%11 338 2022567228 |
Mr. Chan Chi Kong Independent Non-executive
(effective from Director
1 November 2023) Male  Chinese 5 30 November 2023 N/A
REARE(0E  BUFHAES
1A1RELH) g N 20351181 TR C |
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho - Independent
Non-executive Director ~ Male Chinese 74 10 December 2020 23 June 2023
REZEL BukinEs S EIN 2020%12A108 203%6A2A | C | |
Dr. Kok Hoi Sing Independent Non-executive
(effective from Director
1 November 2023) Male  Chinese 78 30 November 2023 N/A
JEAELQBE  BUFHAES
1A1REEN) g I\ ANENAIA TR | |
Mr. Leung Heung Ying  Independent
(from 1 January 2023 to  Non-executive Director
31 October 2023) Male Chinese 60 8 October 2014 22 June 2022
VLY BUFuGES
(B2023E181R 2
2023E104318) 3 EIN 20145107 8H N2E6A2R C | | |
M. Sheu Wei Fu Independent Non-executive
(from 1 January 2023 to  Director
31 October 2023) Male Chinese 53 8 October 2014 23 June 2023
HEREE BUFuGES
(B203E1 5102
223E10R31R) g £\ 2014£1088R 23F6A2E | c {

C - chairman of the committee Z&5 & F /&
\ — member of the committee ZE &4 &

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify ZRATEBESSITRE  UWEREBESEASE
our Directors against possible claims and liabilities arising out of the EXEERIBMUEEENERERE(T-
Group’s business and activities.
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Board meetings and Board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The Company Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meetings and
each Director may request to include any relevant matters on the
agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the regular
meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated
three days before convening each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are made available and
circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will deal
with the matter by a physical board meeting rather than written
resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board Committee
was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-
executive Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend
the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered appropriate.
Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under the Listing Rules,
any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum
in the relevant Board meeting or no vote for the relevant Board
resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms adopted by
the Company are effective in ensuring that independent views and
inputs are available to the Board:

e The Board comprises a majority of Non-executive Directors.

e The terms of appointment of all Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors would not be more than
nine consecutive years.

e In appraising suitability of the Director candidates, the
Board will consider their profiles, including their experience,
qualifications and time commitment; the Board will also
consider to the Board’s overall composition and skill matrix as
well as the Company’s diversity policy.

° The Board will review each Director’s time commitment to the
Company’s business annually.

e The Board will assess Non-executive Directors’ independence
upon appointment and annually.

e Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters in which
he has material interest.

e Directors can upon reasonable request seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge
their duties.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are reviewed
during the annual evaluation of the Board’s performance.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, regularly accesses
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system and considers it to be adequate and effective. The
review covers all material risks, including ESG risks, and controls
including financial, operational, information technology and
compliance controls, and risk management functions. The Board is
not aware of any significant area of concern which may affect the
shareholders. The Board is satisfied that the Company has fully
complied with the code of provisions on internal controls as set
forth in the Code.
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_I/J:\‘ ’M\Aiﬁ-ﬂ:

Board meetings, Board Committees EEZeeR EEZEE®EEN
meetings and General Meetings BRERS

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees AEEEEHENEEZLSE ESEEST
meetings and General Meetings during the year are set out below: BERBEREHBINT &R

Annual  Extraordinary Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Investment
General General Board  Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EZE  EpZEe  §MZBe  ReZEE  REZEg
RRAEAE RREBAAE £ £ ] £ ] EE] EE]
Number of meetings held BEENY 1 1 4 3 1 1 00
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend in 2023
Members of the Board EZgAE EREENE NBEHLERLEES
Executive Director BnEES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) TEFRETRER) 1N 1N 4/4 N/A T
Non-executive Directors FYHES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) ETNEEER) 111 11 44 171 NATER
Mr. Wang Hui TEEE 11 11 4/4 11 N/A T8
Dr. Kang Jian BRlEL 17 0A 34 23
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Leung Heung Ying (ii DERELE() 1" NATER 33 212 17 1" NATER
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu (i SR () 1 NATER 33 212 17 17
Mr. Chan Chi Kong (i) 5% 5% 4 i) - 11 111 1 NATER  NATERE  NATER
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho REZEL 11 11 4/4 33 11 11 N/A T8
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing (v) WA B L) - 117 " NATER  NATER  NATER  NATEAR
() No Investment Committee meeting was held during the year under review (i) Elf"ﬁ BHEHZKETERRBEEZREX %§$
as no proper investment plan and strategies were sound to propose to the REBEFEE WEEGHKEZEEEE -
Board.
(i) Resigned with effect from 1 November 2023. i ff%ﬁﬁi FHITEE  H2023F 1181
HEEERL °

(i) Appointed as Chairman of Audit Committee and member of Investment (i) BZFBERZEELTERKEZEEAS
Committee with effect from 1 November 2023. E2023F1181H%ER °

(iv) Appointed as member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination (iv) BZHEBHWZEEERIEFZEEKE H
Committee with effect from 1 November 2023. 2023F11HTHERL °

Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.6, Independent Non-executive 1RIEFAMEXZEC.1.6(& BAUFHTESER
Directors and Non-executive Directors should attend general FHTEEZELHERRAS - RIBELAMYIE
meetings. According to the above table, all the Independent Non- ZAATFIBBIHHTES  FHITEERH
executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive {TEZHE HE2023REFEFAEHLEZEARD
Director were present at the 2023 AGM and available to answer AR FR Z & °

questions from shareholders of the Company.
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SREARE

Directors’ Continuous Training and
Development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director, to all the Directors. All the
Directors understand that they should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that they are equipped with all information
required for making relevant contributions to the Board.

The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for
instance, Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment.
All Directors are encouraged to have continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, Dr. Kang Jian,
Mr. Wang Hui, Mr. Chan Chi Kong, Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho
and Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing attended seminars or read materials on
corporate governance, updates on laws, rules and regulations and
other professional skills. Directors were also encouraged to take
educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive
Director) a record of the trainings received for the year ended 2023
indicating their compliance to Code Provision C.1.4.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman,
Mr. Ma Yuchuan, and the CEO, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, is responsible for
ensuring that all Directors act in the best interest of shareholders.
Acting independently from the Company, he is fully accountable
to the shareholders and contributes to the Board and the Group
on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned
with three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring
the Group’s effective communication with shareholders and
implementing a high standard of corporate governance.

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, as CEO, is responsible for managing
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that
a proper internal control system is in place and that the Group’s
business conforms to applicable laws and regulations. The CEO
chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also
the weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly
employees’ communication meeting.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such
other period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to
time prescribe. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director at the annual general meeting at
which he retires.

In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors, the Company
implemented the policy regarding the terms of office of Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“Service Term Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual
general meeting at which they retire.

Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules

The directors newly appointed during the year 2023, namely Mr.
Chan Chi Kong and Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing confirmed that (i) they
have obtained the legal advice referred to under Rules 3.09D
of the Listing Rules in November 2023, and (ii) understood the
requirements under the Listing Rules that are applicable to him
as a director of the Company and the possible consequences of
making a false declaration or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry
and business experience to the Group. The composition of
Executive and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment
pursuant to the Code Provision B.1 so as to further strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance. The Non-executive Directors are
of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight. At
least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent
Non-executive Directors will have a private discussion with the
Chairman on the Group’s matters. In addition, Non-executive
Directors, according to the Group’s policy, may approach the
Group’s employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the
year, the Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive
Directors to seek their views on certain business or operational
matters.

During the year 2023, the Board had a total of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and they represented more than one-third
of the Board, which is a sufficient number to meet the minimum
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of
experience to the Board and make active contributions to the
Group. They closely monitor the Group’s development and freely
express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report,
do not have any business with or financial interests in the Group
and confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority
of the votes in the Remuneration Committee are exercisable by
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee does not
deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall
be a matter for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director
or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his or her own remuneration. The Committee also consults
the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The Committee consulted the head of human
resources in respect of human resources policy and market as well
as other company information.

The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year to review and approve principally
the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. As
recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board,
the Committee, currently chaired by Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho
(with effect from 1 November 2023), has delegated to the CEO
the authority to approve the remuneration of all the employees
of the Group below the rank of Executive Director. Policy related
remuneration schemes will be decided by the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Sheu Wei Fu was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee from 1 January 2023 to 31 October 2023, he ceased
to be the chairman of the Remuneration Committee upon his
resignation as Director of the Company. No remuneration has been
paid to Non-executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e To determine the framework and broad policy for the
remuneration of Directors, senior management and general
staff

e To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management

e To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration

e To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including
benefits in kind, pension right and compensation payment

e To review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
Executive Directors and senior management to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive

e To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the
Executive Directors and/or senior management which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets

e To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors and review the annual performance bonus for senior
management achievements against the performance criteria
and by reference to market norms
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

e To review and/or make recommendation to the Board on the
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules

e To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers
necessary

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration
policy for the Executive Director, assessed his performances as well
as reviewed his employment contract with the Group. They also
delegated the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of
senior management and all other employees of the Group. Details
of remuneration of Directors and the senior management are set
out in notes 11 and 36(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements section.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out
below:

%Miﬁ (%)

ML rh%EEU%EJ7§_IETE’JH§ET’J'J‘J§J$HB§$
EZE{T%HT&/:EH§$%%E{/\

e HEFEMEEERSETENEENMNEEX
B MZEEERMHBIR/HER

RN2023% - HFHEESSCRIABTESHHMN

BRI ERARFHAEEAEENERS
N WETERTFITRARED - LIZEBR
AEESHREEASRAEMERE T 2HMH -

BN EEB TR RINGE MK
R MFE11%36(b)A ©

HZE2023F 12831 HILFEEREBEE D
ZEREEERENMESERINNOT

REH

Number of
Remuneration bands persons
B < %5 AH
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017& 7t £2,000,0007& T 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001t £2,500,0007& 5T 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £6,000,0008 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority being
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee generally
meets before the annual general meeting, or at other times as
required by the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions
on any change that may be required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

e To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to
appoint or to recommend to shareholders for election
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e  To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer as well as the senior management

e To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy to set out the criteria
and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors, and
to ensure the balance of skills and experience and diversity of the
Board and the Board’s continuity.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of the
Director rests with the entire Board; the Nomination Committee has
been delegated the responsibility and authority to assess and select
potential Director candidates.

In assessing a Director candidate’s suitability, the Nomination
Committee will consider, among other things, reputation for
integrity, qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, willingness
and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his duties as
Director, independence, diversity, etc.

The Director nomination procedures and process are set out in
the Company’s nomination policy (which can be found in the
Company’s website), which are summarized below:

° The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out in
the nomination policy to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

e |f the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

e The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the
Company for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company (please refer to the Company’s website for the
relevant procedures), the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

e  Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to the shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In this
connection, the Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (which
can be found in the Company’s website) to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Company commits to selecting the best person for the role.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

See the paragraph headed “Board Composition” for the composition
of the Board.

In 2023, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the nomination procedures, the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidate for directorship and
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with
a good balance and diversity of skills and experiences appropriate
for the business of the Company.

As regards the diversity of the Board, it is noted that the Board
currently comprises male Directors only. In this regard, the
Board has commenced the process to identify potential Director
candidates in 2023 and will appoint at least a director of a different
gender on the Board no later than 31 December 2024.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises one Executive Director,
two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. It shall meet at the request of any member of the
Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Finance
Director, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond, will evaluate and approve any strategic investment
of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment exceeding
that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board’s
approval. The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the
Group, to seek external professional advice it considers necessary
and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings. The
Committee will also periodically report the status and performance
of investments to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:
e To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
in relation to investment activities (excluding treasury or cash

management)

e To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities
related to investment

e To establish and document the basic investment principles and
beliefs held by the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct
for avoiding possible conflict of interest

e To have all necessary access and authority to seek information
from management to fulfill its objectives, duties and responsibilities

e To review the appointment of external professional advisers
e To review and monitor investment performance

e To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of
existing investments

e To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and
to recommend to the Board any required changes

e To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the
Committee’s activities, findings, recommendations and results
for the past year

No investment committee meeting held during the year under review
since there were no proper investment plan and strategies.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director and is chaired by
Mr. Chan Chi Kong (“Mr. Chan”). Mr. Chan is a fellow member of
each of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Chartered
Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, and a CFA charter holder of The Chartered Financial
Analyst Institute. Mr. Chan has substantial experience in auditing,
accounting, corporate finance, investment, company secretarial
practice, business development and general management. He held
chief financial officer and various senior management positions in
companies whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan meets the requirement of having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for
the purpose of such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate
governance, interim and annual consolidated financial statements
respectively. It may hold additional meetings from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a
meeting if they consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual
review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any
activity within its terms of reference; (ii) seeking any information it
requires from any employee; and (iii) obtaining outside legal or other
independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor, and deal with any question of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor

e To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems, and any statement by the Directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

e To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity,
effectiveness of the audit process and the scope of the
independent audit including the engagement letter, prior to
commencement of audit
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Audit Committee (continued)

To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial
reports prior to approval by the Board and liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the independent auditor

To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent
auditor; obtain the comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the independent auditor to the Group’s
needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which
if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a
qualified report on the Group’s financial statements

To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and independent auditors and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group

To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems
of internal control and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget

To review the findings of internal investigations and the
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations

To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023 to review and discuss the financial results and

reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,

internal

control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the
work performed by the outsourced internal audit consultant and to
re-appoint of the independent auditor of the Group.
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Audit Committee (continued)

As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate governance
duties, the Committee performed the following duties during the year
ended 31 December 2023:

e  To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules from time to time in particular
in the area of risk management, and to review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure
compliance

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management

e To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements

e To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to
employees and the Directors

e To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

ESG Task Force Committee

Pursuant to Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules, an ESG Task Force
Committee was established in 2021 under the delegated authority
of the Board. The ESG Task Force Committee was chaired by
the Executive Director of the Company working on promoting
and implementing various activities and measures regarding
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters. The
Committee members include the Company Secretary, the Human
Resources Director, heads of various operational departments and
Corporate Communication Manager. The Committee meets at least
once annually and a separate ESG Report has been published on
the same date as this Annual Report. During the year under review,
the Directors and members of the ESG Task Force Committee had
received a formal training on anti-corruption.

The main duties of the Committee are as follows:

e Formulate and review the Group’s responsibilities, visions,
strategies, frameworks, principles and policies of ESG related
issues and implement relevant policies;

e Set, implement and oversee ESG relevant targets, key
performance indicators and measures that align with the
Group’s business model and effectively monitor the progress;

e Identify ESG related issues arising from external factors;

e Organize and monitor staff trainings related to ESG matters;

e Assist in the preparation of the Group’s annual ESG report
and submit it to the Board for their review and approval for
publication; and

e Report any new development of matters with its terms of
reference to the Board when necessary.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated
financial statements of the annual and interim reports. The Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. When the Directors are aware of material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, such
uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out and discussed
at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young
is responsible for auditing and forming an independent opinion on
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements,
Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the
condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 as well as advise the Group
on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services (including tax advisory
service) provided by them for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
US$155,000 (2022: US$148,000) and US$68,000 (2022: US$96,000)
respectively.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
continuous training of Directors. In 2023, the Company Secretary
has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
which exceeded the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has full access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary.

Diversity of workforce

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 302
employees, of which 66% (198) are males, and 34% (104) are
females. Among the senior management team of 5 members, 4 of
them are males and the remaining one is female.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be based on merit and do not consider it appropriate
to set any target gender ratio for our workforce, we recognize
and embrace the benefits of having a diverse workforce, and will
continue to enhance the diversity of our workforce, subject to
availability of suitable candidates.
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly
regarded by the Group. The Group will make sure the Company’s
shareholders know how to exercise their rights. The Group provides
effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

General meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company (or, in the case of a member
being a recognized clearing house (or its nominee) any one member
of the Company) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in order to bring the same in line with
the recent amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies Law of
the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in 2014.

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the
Company’s Share Registrar directly. Information on proceedings
at general meetings, votes of members, proxies, dividends and
reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed in
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, which
is accessible for inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar,
through website of the Group or the website of the Stock Exchange.
The contact details of the Share Registrar is on page 178 of this
Annual Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward
a proposal to the Board or at a shareholders’ meeting, he may
put forth his enquiry in writing to the Corporate Communications
Section of the Group who will act on the subject matter accordingly.
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Shareholders Communication

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy,
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly
the current practices of the Company for communication with
its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. The Board will
regularly reviewed the policy and considered the effectiveness and
compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive approach
to communicate with the investment community, for example,
institutional investors, analysts and retail investors. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group conducted meetings and
conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the Group’s
profile among the general public in Hong Kong, interviews were
conducted with local media, and group visits to its principal office
were arranged with local universities and technology institutions.

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve
its communication with investors, the Company has been collecting
ideas from shareholders and feedback from the investment
community. The Company also appreciates the opportunity to meet
shareholders face-to-face. The Company’s Articles of Association
has accommodated the use of websites for communication with
shareholders since 2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors, including (i) annual reports, interim
reports, notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms which are
required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also choose (or
are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using
electronic means through the Company’s website; (i) the annual
general meeting which provides a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s
website which provides updated and key information on the Group
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing
meetings with analysts to be held to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar which
deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vi) the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which
handles enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.
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Shareholders Communication (continued)

The Board has reviewed the shareholder communication policy and
considered that it is effective and properly implemented.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December 2023,
Huada/CEC held about 28.29% of the Company’s shares, the Board
held roughly 0.68%, and the remaining approximately 71.03%, is
believed to be in public hands.

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also
updated constantly to inform investors and the general public of
the latest information of the Group, for example, the important
dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information for
shareholders can be found on pages 178 to 180 of this Annual
Report.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in January 2019,
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the Shareholders.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations and earnings, the
general financial condition of the Group, the cash requirements and
availability and any other factors that the Board thinks appropriate
from time to time.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, all relevant applicable laws, rules
and regulations in Cayman Islands.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems within
the Group are designed to help the Group achieve key initiatives,
and represent the Group’s efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control
system is a shared responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is
dedicated to educating all employees via trainings to ensure they
understand the importance of internal control policies and adhere to
them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted
the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
The presence of risk management and internal control systems
empowers the Group to implement best business practices in
dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a
way of explaining the relationship between functions and as a guide
to how responsibilities of risk management should be divided:

e Under the first line of defence, operational management
has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly
assessing, controlling and mitigating risks;

e The second line of defence consists of activities covered by
components of internal governance (compliance, financial
controller, quality, IT and other control departments). This
line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational
management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate
risk related information up and down the organization; and

e Internal audit forms the Group’s third line of defence. The
outsourced internal audit consultant, through a risk-based
approach to its work, provides reasonable assurance to the
Group’s board of directors and senior management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks arising from its recurrent and growth
businesses and from the constantly changing business environment.
The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the
consequence of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required
management attention and risk treatment effort. All risks are ranked
and their treatment is determined by a combination of likelihood and
consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to
review the progress of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness
of the risk management.

The board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board reviewed and assessed twice a year the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems in audit
committee meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions, by considering:

(a) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and the work of its
internal audit function and independent auditor;

(c) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the board which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management;

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period (if any). Also, the extent to which
they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance or
condition;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance;

(f) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training program and budget of the Groups’ accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

(9) the proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group’s operating and financial
performance against the financial budget on a quarterly basis while
senior management closely monitored the financial performance on
a monthly basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk
management approach and strategy. They continuously monitors
the global business environment, industry development, as well
as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk management
and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively.

In 2023, the management reviewed the existing risk management
and internal control systems and certain modification of the system
have be implemented during the year under review. The Company
has engaged a consultant to tick off the assessment on Cyber
Security for vulnerability scanning and network infrastructure
penetration test. The management continues to review the adequacy
of its risk management and control framework and looks for
opportunities to make improvements and add appropriate resources
when necessary.

The Group has outsourced internal audit consultant, who will
prepare regular report to the Audit Committee. The outsourced
internal audit consultant provides an independent assessment of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the Code, and assists the
Audit Committee to conduct regular reviews of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, which include the
review of the effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. Different audit areas are
assigned with different risk ratings and an audit plan is formulated
accordingly so that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given
to areas with higher risks. The outsourced internal audit consultant
conducts regular financial and operational reviews on the Group and
reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee regularly.
The Group monitors the follow up actions agreed upon in response
to its recommendations.

The Finance Director, after consulting the outsourced internal
audit consultant updates CEO about the internal audit working
progress on a regular basis. The Audit Committee reviews the work
performed by outsourced internal audit consultant and summary
of major findings and control weaknesses, if any, at least twice
every year to ensure the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk
management and internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy
and a system on anti-fraud for employees and third parties to raise
concerns in confidence, which complied with the recommended
best practice in the Code. In 2023, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that
had material effect on the Group’s financial statements and overall
operations.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group also established policy on Protection of Proprietary
Information of the Group to ensure that the confidential proprietary
information, including business, technical, financial or personal
information that has significant value to Group are properly
protected.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in 2023 are effective and adequate and the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls systems of the Group.
However, investors and shareholders are reminded that the systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Constitutional Documents

On 8 May 2023, the Board announced its proposal to amend its
Memorandum and Articles of Association and its adoption in order
to bring the Articles in line with the latest legal and regulatory
requirements, including the amendments made to Appendix A1 to
the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022. At the AGM
held on 23 June 2023, a special resolution was passed to adopt the
amendments to the Articles. For further information in relation to the
amendments to the Articles, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 8 May 2023 and the circular for the 2023 AGM
dated 9 May 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Principal activities and geographical
analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 83.

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to US$14,000 (2022: US$19,000).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023,
comprising share premium reserve of US$103,706,000 that is
subject to the regulation of Section 34 of the Cayman Islands
Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
accumulated losses of US$102,596,000, totalling US$1,110,000 net
are available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Equity linked agreements - Share options
granted to directors and employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and
“The Share Option Scheme” section contained in this Report of the
Directors. All the share options granted during the year are with
vesting conditions, there was no share issued for the year ended 31
December 2023 in respect of share options granted in 2023.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Zﬁﬂaﬁgﬁﬁiﬁkﬁfniﬂi Al WEELEERNE
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such rights XIREAXRATBRLEHIMIBERRIZESHERN
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company & > MBI EHE LM T ERSZESER -

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
Five-year financial summary
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ZARNEEHZE12A31BLB IR AN BEENE
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December is set out ENEEREBHEFHNE173E °

on page 173.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Company’s
listed shares

EE
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Save in respect of the options granted and/or shares issued by the ARAIRBEBRESS (FBEIER TR
Company pursuant to its share option scheme (the details of which HHERER HETHRMD I » B ZE202345F
are disciosed below), there was no purchase, sale or redemption 12B31HIEEER  AATREEAHE R T
of the Company’s listed shares by the Company or any of its WHES HERBEAATLTRG °

subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2023.
Permitted indemnity provisions
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Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, subject to the provisions of the R#E7x EERBYRERT B8R
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of EBEEHEEME(EAESAETMNRERNEE
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred {EfR2F (HEHBERAESEER) REmBH
or sustained by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, WHEAZHW—EAREZFE  RAQATWEED
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, XEESHE  AAFCKRFRBENRRE » LUHEE
or in which he is acquitted. The Company has taken appropriate ZBEEEAREBYRR IHMAUKEENZER
insurance cover to indemnify the Directors against possible claims ZF{f c XA AIZRMWAERK IR L RFBAE
and liabilities arising out of the Group’s business and activities. Z2023%F 12831 LB BEERBERKEH
The relevant provisions in the Company’s Articles and the aforesaid HiBE#

insurance were in force during the financial year ended 31
December 2023 and as of the date of this report.

The Share Option Scheme B T &l

&
) 55
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share AR TIHR2013F58288 BITHWRRBERS
Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May i —ERES 2 ([2013@REST2]) -
2013. Details can be referred to in note 26(a) to the consolidated EERREAEIRE 1581628 A2 B EHR
financial statements on pages 158 to 162 of this Annual Report. FK M FE26(a) °
Valuation of share options EBREEE
The Company uses Binomial Valuation Model to value the share ZAAFRAZEIEBEIGFECHEHEREN
options granted. Details of the key parameters used in the Model and EE - AEEEREEXNTIESZHERY
the corresponding fair values of the share options granted during the EZEEHNBEREZATEFIEZ2REEEH
year should be referred to in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial — #5 ¥ 3% fft 5¥26(a) - H2023% 202245 X % T 48
statements. The details of the share options granted to the respective EAATHBREFBUOT :
parties during 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
2023 2022
Number Number
(in thousand (in thousand
units) Value unltE) Value
fE B BE
(A F Azt T£rn (L/FHLD.T) ST
Current directors REES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TES 3,000 63 3,000 83
Chan, Philip Ching Ho RES 800 17 800 22
Subtotal for Current directors BRES /it 3,800 80 3,800 105
Ex-directors MEE
Leung Heung Ying (i) RZH() 800 17 800 22
Sheu Wei Fu (i % () 800 17 800 22
Subtotal for Ex-directors BIEE /5t 1,600 34 1,600 44
Senior management BREEE 500 14 - -
Employees =l - - 500 14
Total @t 5,900 128 5,900 163
()  The share options were granted on 25 May 2023. As on the grant () %888 Ik # 2023554 25E| jr-it{_-', HiEgH
date, the grantees were directors of the Company. The directors were H ARAABRQRAES -ZEECIRFBH
resigned with effect from 1 November 2023. £ B2023%F11A1H i“ix‘ﬁ( °
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 72023512831 H B R2013E R 2T
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZERENFREOT

Nurber of share options (in thousand units)
BlREER (AT

*Share price of
Lapsed/ Exercise price  the Gompany immediately
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on for the share before the exercise/
1 January during during during 31 December  options granted grant date of share options
Name of Directors 2023 the year the year the year 2023 pershare HKS (note) HKS Grant date Vesting period Exercise period
SRERENR/
H202E 3 H2023% fiftfe RhRSH
FEL 1RIREE  FACRE  EREAE BEE/NE  128%ABA # RAFIRERD) izl 584 ol
Executive Directors
#nEz
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond 3,000 - - - 3,000 0840 NAY0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
1%k 31 May 2024
0156718 0156A1A 020%5681R%
202457318
3,000 - - - 3,000 0530 NAY0.520 20 June 2022 2 Jne 2022 From 23 June 2023
1020 June 2025
N20F6F2A N2EF6R2A H023E6A23AE
205%6A208
- 3,000 - - 3,000 0463 NAVD.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to 25 May
2025
2023%6258 WBEBANE  BABESANBEE
00555R2A
Subtotal /Nt 6,000 3,000 - - 9,000
Independent Non-gxecutive
Directors
BUfTES
Chan Philip Ching Ho 800 - - - 800 0.840 NA/.790 1 June 2021 1June 2021 to 1June 2022 to
R 31 May 2022 31 May 2024
2156418 A21E6R1AZ N0E6R1RE
N2E 58318 2458318
800 - - - 800 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 20 June 202210 From 23 Jung 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
026528 HANE6ENRE  HAN3E6RRE
N23F6R21A 225%6A208
- 800 - - 800 0.463 NA/0.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
25 May 2025
2023554258 203558258 H2023E5R25AE
205554250
Subtotal 3t 1,600 800 - - 2400
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Nurber of share options (in thousand units)

BREEE (A7)

*Share price of
Lapsed/ Exercise price  the Gompany immediately
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on for the share before the exercise/
1 January during during during 31 December options granted  grant date of share options
Name of Directors 2023 the year the year the year 2023 per share HKS (note) HKS Grant date Vesting period Exercise period
BRERENE/
H202E 3 120238 fiftf RHREH
EztE 1AIREE  FACRE  EREAE  BHE/NE  12A%ABA A RARREME sl 884 i
Independent Non-gxecutive
Directors
BUjnES
Leung Heung Ying™ 800 - - - 800 0840 NAD.790 1June 2021 1June 2021 to 1June 2022 to
(resigned with effect from 31 May 2022 31 May 2024
1 November 2023) 215618 WIEGA1RE NNF6R1RE
235 (HM003E11 1A N0ER3A N4E5R31A
&) 800 - - - 800 0530 NA0.520 2 Jung 2022 20 Jne 20210 From 23 June 2023
21 June 2023 020 June 2025
0206528 HANE6ENRE  MAN3E6RRE
22365218 20564208
- 800 - - 800 0.463 NA/0.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
25 May 2025
2023554258 203%5R258  H2023E5R25AE
2025%5A25R
1,600 800 - - 2400
Sheu Wei Fu** 800 - (800) - - 0.201 0.47/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020to 1 November 2021 to 31
[resigned with effect 27 May 2021 October 2023
from 1 November 2023) 2020108308 N20F10A0AZE ANENFIAE
FHER (2520235 A1 E5H278 2023E10R31R
11A1RER) 800 - - - 800 0840 NAY0.790 1 June 2021 1June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
216818 W1EGA1RE NNF6R1RE
N0E5R31A N4E5R31A
800 - - - 800 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 202210 From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
02065228 HANE6ENRE  HANE6RRE
22364218 20564208
- 800 - - 800 0.463 NA/0.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
25 May 2025
2023F5A258 2003558258 H2023E5R25AE
2005554250
2400 800 (800) - 2400
Subtotal for Ex-director 4,000 1,600 (800) - 4800
HEEl
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Nurnber of share options (in thousand units)

BREgE (L)

*Share price of
Lapsed/ Exercise price  the Gompany immediately
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on for the share before the exercise/
1 January during during during 31 December options granted  grant date of share options
Name of Directors 2023 the year the year the year 2023 pershare HKS (note) HKS Grant date Vesting period Exercise period
BRERENE/
H2023% R 20238 i RRg
FEL4 191BEE  EACHRE  EACAE  CEE/NE  R%MBEE A RATRERD iz 884 758
Senior management & others 50 - (50) - 0.159 NA/.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 0
BRERERAM 29 December 2021 31 December 2023
195128308 20195128308 22021 WNF1RIAZ
F12R298 N3E12A318
1,000 - (500) (500) - 0.2454 0.520.221 17 July 2020 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
16 July 2022 18 July 2024
A0%7R178 NNETR1TAZ NNE1R19AE
02257R168 N45E7R18H
5,600 - - (640) 4,960 0.790 NA/.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
7 Jung 2022 7 June 2024
A2151278R NNE12A8EE N2056A8H2
W0%56RTA 200456478
8,400 - - (960) 1440 0.790 NAD.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 o 8 June 2023 0
7June 2023 6 June 2025
021%12A88 W1E12A88% 200356R8RZ
N356A7H 2025%6A6A
250 - - - 250 0630 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22June 202210 From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
02056F22R BONEGANE  BA3E6ANAE
N3%6R21A 00556 00A
250 - - - 250 0530 NAY0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 202210 From 24 Jung 2024 to
21 June 2024 23 June 2026
N22F6A2A H02056A2E H024EGAAE
N24E6R21A 2026565238
- 250 - - 250 0.546 NAY0.500 2 March 2023 24 March 203t024 25 March 2024 to 24
March 2024 March 2026
N3E3RUA RNNEIFUAE  ANUEIABRE
NUEIAUB 00653R14A
- 250 - - 250 0546 NA0.500 2 March 2023 24 March 203t024 25 March 2025 to 24

March 2025 March 2027
ABEIRUR BABFIAUEE  EABEIABAZ
053R4 NTEIAUE

Subtotal 15,550 500 (500) (2,150) 13,400
s
Total
it 21,150 5,900 (1,300 (2,150 29,600

The weighted average share closing price of the shares immediately  * SEBRETER AR METIRTHE
before the date on which the options were exercised or the closing REEBRETERZANROUTE (R
price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options MEE) °

were granted (as applicable).

**  The share options were granted on 25 May 2023. As on the grant ** I8 B IR # R2023%548 25E| E

o R
date, the grantees were directors of the Company. The directors were A &ARAARXDBES -ZEEC ? R
resigned with effect from 1 November 2023. £ B2023%11A1H @Es& °
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The grant of Options to Director or ex-directors during the year
has been approved by the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules (with each of the
independent non-executive Directors having abstained from voting
on the relevant resolution relating to the grant of Options to himself).

The Board is mindful of the recommended best practice E.1.9 of the
corporate governance code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules which recommends that issuers should generally not grant
equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements to
independent non-executive directors. Since the Options granted
are not performance-based, the Board is of the view that the grant
of Options to the independent non-executive Directors does not
fall within the circumstances as described under E.1.9 and would
not affect the independence and impartiality of the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, under the respective service
agreements entered into by the independent non-executive
Directors with the Company, each of the independent non-executive
Directors is an eligible participant in the 2013 Share Option Scheme,
and therefore the Board considers that it is appropriate to grant the
Options to the independent non-executive Directors which is in line
with the past practice of the Company and believes the inclusion
of independent non-executive Directors as Grantees will allow the
Company to keep its remuneration package competitive in order to
attract and retain talent.

Such grant of Options would not result in the Shares issued and to
be issued in respect of all options and awards granted to any of the
Grantees above in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant in aggregate to be over 0.1% of the Shares in issue.
Such grant of Options is not subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.

The grant of the 500,000 Options was made to an employee of
the Group who is responsible for financial reporting and financial
management of the Group (the “Grantee”) in consideration of his
contribution to the Group. Such grant of options is not subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this report,
the Grantee is not (i) a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or an associate (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of any of them; (ii) a participant with options and
awards granted and to be granted exceeding the 1% individual
limit under the Listing Rules; or (iii) a related entity participant
or a service provider (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Such grant of options would not result in the Shares
issued and to be issued in respect of all options and awards granted
to such grantee in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant in aggregate to be over 1% of the Shares in issue.
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Performance target and clawback mechanism
There is no performance target nor clawback mechanism attached
to the Options.

Regarding the grant of Options to Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, the
executive Director and the chief executive officer, the Remuneration
Committee is of the view that performance targets are not necessary
since the value of the Options is subject to the future market price
of the Shares, which, in turn, depends on the business performance
of the Group, to which he would directly contribute, which could
ensure that he would be motivated to contribute to the Company’s
development. Regarding the grant of Options to the independent
non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee considers
that the non- performance based Options granted to each of the
independent non-executive Directors are in line with the past
practice of the Company and the remuneration package offered
under their respective service agreements, which stipulated that,
subject to the decision of the Board to grant any options, each
of the independent non-executive Directors shall be an eligible
participant in the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee is of the view that a
clawback mechanism is not necessary considering the lapse and
cancellation of share options under various scenarios has already
been provided for under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, which
could adequately safeguard the Company’s interests.

Financial Assistance

The Group has not provided any financial assistance to the Grantees
to facilitate the purchase of Shares under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.
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The Group’s environmental policies and
performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high
standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building
up a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The
Group’s ESG Report for 2023 has been published on the same date of
this Annual Report and has been published separately on the Company’s
website at www.solomon-systech.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

Relationships with employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes
in communicating with staff and giving them training and career
development opportunities. It also recognizes good performance. It
provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve work-
life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual’s qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Yuchuan

Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Kang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Kong (appointed on 1 November 2023)
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing (appointed on 1 November 2023)
Mr. Leung Heung Ying
(resigned with effect from 1 November 2023)
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu (resigned with effect from 1 November 2023)
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond and Dr.
Kang Jian will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond and Dr.
Kang Jian being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chan Chi Kong and Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing were appointed as
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company on 1
November 2023 and each has entered into a three years service
contract with the Company with effect from 1 November 2023 until
31 October 2026. In accordance with Article 95 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Chi Kong and Dr. Kwok Hoi
Sing were appointed as an addition to the Board effective from
1 November 2023, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho is the Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company and his service contract was renewed in 2023 for a
term expiring on 30 June 2024.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 24 to 32 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ interests

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies were as follows:

EEER

R2023F 128310 ' FESRITBARAEL
ARERBELIE(EERESRBPEFL)NER
HREERMTIFHEEELCHNIRERSFRBER
BISEXVEBSESS2F M EAR DN A EFENER R
ML RERBLTRTAESETRSERS

MEREFAHMERD TR

X ER ROR R

mE

Ordinary shares in the Company as at

% of the
issued share
capital of the

31 December 2023
R2023F 1231 B AL AEER

Share Company
Position Shares Options® Total EARDFE
BRMRR kip EREo @i BTRREAL
Executive Director BE=S
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) TEREE(THAR) Long #& 5,600,000 9,000,000 (i) 14,600,000 0.58%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) BENEE(XR) Long #& - - - -
Mr. Wang Hui IBEE Long ##& - - - -
Dr. Kang Jian e}k Long & - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFH{TES
Mr. Chan Chi Kong REXEE Long #f2 - - - -
(appointed on 1 November 2023) (202311 F1BEE )
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho REZEL Long #%& - 2,400,000 (ii) 2,400,000 0.09%
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing BERBL Long & - - - -
(appointed on 1 November 2023) (202311 F1BEZ M)
Mr. Leung Heung Ying (resigned with RPEHEEE Long #& 2,400,000 2,400,000 (ii) 4,800,000 0.19%
effect from 1 November 2023) (BR2023%11 A1 AEHE)
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu (resigned with FEXEE Long #& 2,400,000 2,400,000 (ii) 4,800,000 0.19%
effect from 1 November 2023) (BR2023%11 A1 AEHE)
Notes: Bt -
(i) Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more () ZZEREBRE2013EREFZ (FHIELZE

(i)

(iii)
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details on pages 60 to 65.

The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip
Ching Ho, Mr. Leung Heung Ying and Mr. Sheu Wei Fu on 1 June
2021 have been vested and are exercisable from 1 June 2022 to 31
May 2024, another 800,000 share options of the Company granted
to Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho, Mr. Leung Heung Ying and Mr. Sheu
Wei Fu on 22 June 2022 have been vested are exercisable from 23
June 2023 to 20 June 2025, and another 800,000 share options of
the Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho, Mr. Leung Heung
Ying and Mr. Sheu Wei Fu on 25 May 2023 have been vested and are
exerciseable from 25 May 2023 to 25 May 2025.

The 3,000,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah
Chi Raymond on 1 June 2021 have been vested and are exercisable
from 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024, another 3,000,000 share options of
the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah Chi Raymond on 22 June 2022
have been vested and are exercisable from 23 June 2023 to 20 June
2025, and another 3,000,000 share options of the Company granted to
Mr. Wang Wah Chi Raymond on 25 May 2023 have been vested and are
exercisable from 25 May 2023 to 25 May 2025.
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interests in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company and
its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

Substantial shareholders’ interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2023, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Ordinary shares in the Company
as at 31 December 2023
R2023F 1231 BRAAEER

% of the

Number of issued share

Number of share options capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity Position shares held held Total Company

RRE® &% BEmfR  FEROEE FEBREHE g BRAEE

BTRABAL

Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.29%
ERYERERAT BEREEA &

*China Electronics Limited Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.29%
HEETERAT FrEslnEBmNER #E

China Electronics Corporation (i) Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.29%
HEEFREEXRBERAA FriEsinEBnER #&

Note: Kzt -

(i) To the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd is a subsidiary which 58.07% hold by China
Electronics Limited, and China Electronics Limited is 81.66% owned
by China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”). CEC is a stated-owned
information technology conglomerate under the administration of the
central government of the People’s Republic of China.

English name is for identification purpose only
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as having interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company.

Management contracts

No contracts, saved for service contracts of the Director and
employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases g

- the largest supplier —BRAMER

- five largest suppliers combined - hRHEEEE
Sales HE

- the largest customer —BRAEF

— five largest customers combined -HEREF&E

ST EE SN - 2023128318 » RiE
EE L EIENEINB6KALNT AT HEENE
SO MEHEMA L (ESHRIN) EER
ARAIBRORBERPHEZIAE -

EEEH

BRESHRBESOARERSHON  FRBES
AEREAERAQRREHAEMNEENDEH
MEBERTERHEH -

TEHREBREF

FEEEIEHEBLREFREAFENREBR
HEBOLWT :

33%
81%

37%
79%

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

Related parties and connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standards, which include transactions
that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Details of the related parties transactions
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary,
had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions

HES, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, entered into a licence
agreement with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) respectively on 29 October 2021 in connection with
the grant of licenses to the Group on the installation and execution
of certain Electronic Design Automation (EDA) tools for internal use
and development of the Group’s own products for a two years’
term from 30 October 2021 to 29 October 2023. The consideration
payable by the Group to HES amounted to CNY4,000,200,
among which, CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2021 and
CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2022. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 October
2021. On 30 October 2023, HES entered into a licence agreement
with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and Solomon Systech
(Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
respectively with the same nature as the previous agreement for
a three years’ term from 30 October 2023 to 29 October 2026.
The consideration payable by the Group to HES amounted to
CNY6,250,000, among which, CNY2,050,000 was paid by 30
November 2023, CNY2,100,000 shall be payable by 30 November
2024 and CNY2,100,000 shall be payable by 30 November 2025.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2023.

Continuing connected transactions

On 22 October 2020, the Group entered into an agreement (“2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement”) with CEACI, an
indirect subsidiary of CEC, under which CEACI would act as a non-
exclusive authorized distributor of the Group in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, and purchase IC and driver products from the Group
for the years 2021 to 2023 (“Sales to CEACI). The prices for the
products under the Sales to CEACI shall be determined fairly in
accordance with the costs, resources and technology requirements
with reference to market practices and prices and having taken into
account the technology and quality of the relevant products. Such
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 December 2020.

On 6 May 2022, the Company and CEACI entered into a
supplemental agreement to revise the annual caps in respect of
the Sales to CEACI as set out in the abovementioned agreement.
The supplemental agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 June
2022.

For further details of the continuing connected transaction on the
Sales to CEACI, please refer to the circulars of the Company dated
12 November 2020, 21 April 2021 and 7 June 2022, respectively.
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As the 2021 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023, and the Company intends to continue
carrying out the existing arrangements with CEACI under the 2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement on sales and distribution
of the Products within the Territory as part of the Group’s usual
and ordinary course of business, the Company entered into the
2024 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement with CEACI on
14 November 2023 to renew the arrangements under the 2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement for a term of three years.
Such agreement was approved by independent shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 20 December 2023. Details
of which have been set out in the announcement of the Company
on 14 November 2023 and circular of the Company on 4 December
2023.

The actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2023 in respect of the above continuing connected transactions on
the Sales to CEACI was set out:

HR2021FEREER D HHZEN2023F12
B31HER MAATEREAEFRAIER—R
(B BRED  HERBIEEREERDH
HERECEACETEEREEAEER D HEE
MBVEEZHE - A RA T ECEACITN20235F 11
B14BFT2024F ERmEER D EH=E - &
I FEEMEER D HEHMEETNZHEE=
F o BREBECN2023F 128208 ET2RR
BRAS I EBIRRME BEE-DHBR
R R B R2023F11 8148 2 A & Kk20234%F
1248 2 BH -

LSS E FCEACIZ I ERER ZNE £2023
F12A31MBLEENEBRRSSEBEUNT

Actual

Annual Cap transaction

for the year amount for

ended the year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2023

HZ2023% HZz2023%

12831H1E 12831H1E

FENEE FENER

LREHE RECHE

US$’000 US$’000

Nature of Transactions REUE S S
Sales to CEACI $HEFCEACI 150,000 56,534

The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction have been reviewed by independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transaction was
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and (d)
the relevant transactions conducted in the year ended 31 December
2023 were within the annual cap.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together
with the Group’s outsourced internal audit consultant and Audit
Committee, have conducted regular review of the continuing
connected transaction of the Group. The Audit Committee were
satisfied that the Group’s continuing connected transaction during
the year ended 31 December 2023 have complied with the Listing
Rules requirement in all respects.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unmodified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed for
the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with paragraph
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirm that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at 20 March 2024.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules effective for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (“Appendix C1”). To maintain high
standards of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
recommended best practices in Appendix C1 where appropriate.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees on no less
exacting terms than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that
they have been in compliance with such guidelines during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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EEGHRE

Compliance with laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group has complied, in all material respects,
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Business review and outlook

The business review and outlook disclosure of the Group for the
year as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 13 to 16 of this Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

Independent auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M B BLA R

EY::

To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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EY:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

18 M B BLA R

The Group had inventories with carrying amount of US$27.9
million as at 31 December 2023. The Group performs regular
review of the carrying amounts of inventories to determine
if any write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
required after considering the aged analyses of inventories,
relevant historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant judgements and estimates
based on expectation about future market conditions.

The related disclosures of estimation uncertainty and balance
of inventory provision are included in notes 4 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

We evaluated management’s assessment of
whether the estimated net realisable values of
inventories declined below their carrying amounts.
Our procedures included understanding and
assessing the Group’s processes over identifying
and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excessive and other potentially impaired inventory
items for which their net realisable values might
decline below their carrying amounts; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used
by the Group in determining the net realisable
values of inventories; and assessing the write-down
of inventories required by testing the aged analyses
of inventories, sales made and materials used
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
historical sales and usage reports.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M B BLA R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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18 M B BLA R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

20 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023412531 A 1L F I
2023 2022
Notes US$°000 US$’000
MIaE TET EH
Revenue HERE 5 153,151 190,843
Cost of sales $HE R (106,813) (125,370)
Gross profit E! 46,338 65,473
Research and development costs T 9% % BE 2% R AR (17,801) (27,071)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (3,288) (4,221)
Administrative expenses THEX (9,119) (8,254)
Other expenses HihBIx 8 = (154)
Other income and gains - net Hib A R Uz - F5E 7 902 2,002
17,032 27,775
Finance income - net BREWA - F5 9 2,470 246
19,502 28,021
Share of losses of associates iRl RNk = ES 18 (14) (114)
Profit before tax BRF AR 6 19,488 27,907
Income tax expense FEHmx 12 (45) (83)
Profit for the year REEZER 19,443 27,824
Attributable to: FEAL -
- Owners of the parent - RAREE A 19,443 27,833
- Non-controlling interests - FERER - 9)
19,443 27,824
Earnings per share attributable to KRAREBESEFEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: EBEHNEREF
(expressed in US cent(s) per share) (AZEAL - BR25) 13
- Basic - B 0.8 1.1
— Diluted - #58 0.8 1.1

The notes on pages 90 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FOEIT2EMMAAZEREMBRERNARBMH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEEHEBARREK

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B F2023%F 12H31H IF F &

2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx E3
Profit for the year REEEF 19,443 27,824
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Htt2mEWBA (B X)
Other comprehensive loss that may be REREE Htt2E|E
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRAEBEHIEZE
periods: BEk:
- Exchange differences arising on -RESNEREELE
translation of foreign operations ZEREEE (2,007) (2,772)
Other comprehensive income that will not be  REZHRE  Hab2EUA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BreeEfsEEBRE
periods:
- Equity investment designated at fair value -BRAFEBEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income: WENRERE N
Changes in fair value BEZE - 96
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEB X (2,007) (2,676)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHEHBALE 17,436 25,148
Attributable to: FEAL -
- Owners of the parent - ARBEEEA 17,436 25,157
- Non-controlling interests - FERER - 9)
17,436 25,148

The notes on pages 90 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FOEIT2EMNMERZEF S M BHRROARINND -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R R

As at 31 December 2023

R2023F12H31A
2023 2022
Notes US$°000 US$’000
MiEE FEx EH
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Intangible assets BEERE 15 - -
Property, plant and equipment M MERZE 16 4,836 5,089
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17(a) 1,391 1,802
Investments in associates REE QTR E 18 761 968
Equity investment designated at fair BRAFEEA
value through other comprehensive Hitt 2 E U=/
income RiERE 20 1,161 1,161
Other receivables, prepayments and HMEWSR  FERR
deposits & 23 679 3,117
Total non-current assets ERBEELET 8,828 12,137
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 27,920 48,221
Trade and other receivables, W R EMmEWRK
prepayments and deposits EARKE £ 23 31,817 46,308
Pledged bank deposits E2EANRITER 21 6,000 6,041
Cash and cash equivalents BHENESEEY 21 80,339 45,556
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEGFTABRZ
profit or loss EREE 24 2,522 -
Total current assets MENEERT 148,598 146,126
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables AR R B R 29 26,908 45,347
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITETEER 30 1,657 1,421
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 985 1,304
Tax payable BB 424 315
Total current liabilities mEAERE 29,974 48,387
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZRE 118,624 97,739
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRE
LIABILITIES aE 127,452 109,876
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEERE 17(b) 521 692
Net assets BEERE 126,931 109,184
continued/...
/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

e M BARR R ()

As at 31 December 2023

JR2023%12831A
2023 2022
Notes US$°000 US$’000
Myt FER E3
EQUITY xS
Equity attributable to owners of the  &AT#HEE AE(L
parent s
Issued capital 2EITRA 25 32,166 32,149
Reserves B 27 94,830 77,100
126,996 109,249
Non-controlling interests FERER (65) (65)
Total equity R 126,931 109,184

The notes on pages 90 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FEIT2ENMERZSHF M BRERMAKIL

On behalf of the Board
REREES

WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
FEX
Chief Executive Officer

1T IBAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bl Z2023F 12531 H L FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
KAREEARL
Equity
compensation Non-
Issued Share Merger  Exchange resevve  Fair value Other - Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve Bxis reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

RE  ROBE  aMEE  EXBE  AMRE OTEER  AMRE  RMER  4Sn  FEREE 4RR
Notes Us§oo  USSO00  USS000  USSOO0  USSO00  usFooD  USSOO0  USGO00  USH00D  USSO00  USO00

iR in in in in in in in in e in Ti1
At1 January 2022 H022E118 32,123 81,245 2,082 1838 17897 923 20 (49,575) 86,763 (56) 86,707
Profit for the year EnigH - - - - - - - 21,833 21,833 9 21,84
Other comprehensive incomefloss) £ EH2E (F8)/
for the year. A
- Changes n far value of equity -ROFEERALM
investment at fair value through tENERERED
other comprehensive income TE29 - - - - - % - - % - %
- Exchange diferences arsngon -~ - RN EREEE
translation of foreign operations LEREE - - - R - - - - pm) - R
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2HHA/ (B8 &3t - - - .172) - % - 27833 2,157 0 2,148
2001 fial dicend ped MIEFERE - By - - - - - - - B
Equity-settled share option REEREH
anangements 2% - - - - 49 - - - 496 - 496
Issue of shares upon exercise of TERESRORA
share options 2 2% 3% - - (10) - - - 52 - 52
At 31 December 2022 and H2022%12R31AR
at 1 January 2023 A23E151A 32,149 78,062 2,082 934y 18,383" 1,019 20 (21,7421 109,249 (65) 109,184
Proftfor the year Emihl - - - - - - - 19443 19443 - 19443
Other comprehensive incomefloss) ~~ EAER2ENRN/
for the year: (F8):
-Exchange diferences aisngon - REENEREEE
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - .007) - - - - 2,00 - 2,00)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHA/ (B%) &3t - - - 2007) - - - 10,443 17,43 - 17,43
Equity-settled share option RAEREH
arangements 2% - - - - M4 - - - 04 - 04
Issue of shares upon exercise of ERELRTRA
share options 2 17 3 - - (10) - - - 3 - 3
At 31 December 2023 20231231 B 32,166 78,09 2,082 (2,941 18,647 1,019° 20° 2299 12699% (65) 126,931

The notes on pages 90 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BIBIT2ENMEAZEFAVBRROARH -

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$94,830,000 (2023: US$77,100,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

* HESEAIERS 194,830,000 T (20234 1 77,100,000 E ) HRAGEE MR E ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEEERER
melREn=E

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B F2023%F 12H31H IF F &

2023 2022
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx FEx
Cash flows from operating activities RETHz2HERE
Profit before tax BRF AR R 19,488 27,907
Adjustments for: RS
Finance costs I B A AN 9 77 117
Share of losses of associates iR /N E = ES 18 14 114
Interest income F B WA 9 (2,547) (363)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BENRREN
plant and equipment W= 7 (3) (3)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BERFHEHFERERE
inventories, net 6 1,211 12,013
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBREE
equipment i 6 1,387 1,293
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 6 1,391 1,355
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEEN 6 - 504
Equity-settled share option expense P& 75 RE 55 3R A 6 274 496
COVID-19-related rent concession from 2019 mSHIEEHEE
lessors R 17b - (76)
Loss on termination of lease #wIFAERK 17¢ 11 -
21,303 43,357
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD (3 m) 17,995 (19,368)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FE WK R L At FE WK
other receivables, prepayments and BARRIT2ED
deposits () 16,783 (1,371)
Decrease in trade and other payables PR R R H A FE T X
WD (18,273) (4,832)
Cash generated from operations KEELENRE 37,808 17,786
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BB (81 BBFER 75 (56)
Overseas income tax paid A BB = (27)
Interest paid BT R (77) (117)
Net cash from operating activities RETHELENRESEHE 37,806 17,586
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZ2EERE
Purchases of items of property, plantand BEY¥% - KE
equipment REE 16 (1,087) (2,532)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &3 - #38
and equipment REE 4 3
Proceeds from reduction in investment in  REfZ N TWREBD TS
associates 193 -
Increase in financial asset at fair value RAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss SREELM (2,522) -
Interest received 2 WFE 2,547 363
Net cash used in investing activities RETBERANESFE (865) (2,166)

88 Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
REHETRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bl Z2023F 12531 H L FE

2023 2022
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MIEE FEx FET
Cash flows from financing activities METBH2HERE
Release of pledged bank deposits BRIDIEFNVRITER 41 10,959
Dividend paid % EUR 3% - (8,219)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BREEBITERER
exercise of share options 25 37 52
Principal portion of lease payments HERNRHEREEBH 33(b) (1,425) (1,231)
Drawdowns of bank borrowings T EIRITE R 33(b) 1,657 1,421
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTER 33(b) (1,421) (181)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BMETEE (FH) EEN
activities e FHE (1,111) 7,801
Net increase in cash ReRkReZEENWF
and cash equivalents 0 35,830 23,221
Cash and cash equivalents FHEeRES
at beginning of year ZEY 45,556 24,757
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE o 8% - FHE (1,047) (2,422)
Cash and cash equivalents FREERES
at end of year £EY 80,339 45,556
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRReEEYNEER
equivalents DA
- Bank balances and cash -RITHEBRERES 80,339 45,556
The notes on pages 90 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FIEIENMTAZEREMEIRROVAKIBMD ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

90

General information

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are
fabless semiconductor companies specializing in the design,
development and sales of integrated circuits (“IC”) products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
November 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under Cap. 22, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is Third Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands (with
effect from 1 October 2022) and the address of its principal
office in Hong Kong is Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre, 3
Science Park East Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries

Please refer to note 19 to the financial statements for the
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2. BFEE (&)

21

2.2

mEEE(H)
REEE (E)

HEERBERER LlEHE=18E
ERN-—ERNZIEHREE - XK
EEEMTHHRTEBIRRES -
MEBRRAEESN S BT ER
REGENBERTREZRZ IR -

1ieh 7= 5= [ 28 5k 39 Y /& % B) AV IZ I
AR IEERANBLRANEREE (8
EEHE) et  FUFEEREZRR
A A RRAE 5 F  LHEREM
REREN D FERT ABRZNEM
AmELENBEHRIEA - AR RS
ZARHEMEE WA NERHN B 7
BERASEEZEHEEHREERRE
FRENHREEEN I ERBERR
REBEF (WBEA) -

B BERREZES
AEBECRAFE 2 BBHRRE R
MULT #ET RAEER] 2 BB MBI/ E

A

Insurance Contracts

REEE#

B HEIKE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

HEFAETAHNESE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

BE-XGIELWEEREGBHBELZNE

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

BN K E — S = gAY

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities of the
subsidiary, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
HKFRS 17
BB HREERE17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
EBEHENFIRRERVBRE
BB HBE25R Z1EFT
Amendments to HKAS 8
BRI ERIZE8 2185
Amendments to HKAS 12
BBETERE 129 2185
Amendments to HKAS 12
BRETTERIE1258 2185
92 Solomon Systech (International) Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=N b e

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material
accounting policy information in note 2 to the financial
statements. The amendments did not have any impact
on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s
approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments did not
have any significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(continued)

(d) Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform

94

— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and
the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted or
substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since
the Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar
Two model rules, the amendments did not have any
impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

=N b e

2. BFEE (&)
2.3 BEMENKERNELHEREE

Ll

AEELEAMBRTDEATIC
FEAE M RERMEIETT BB B
HEA  NREEBERNZEEETER
MBRMEZRNERRERAZSETE
BMBHREER (WEA) -

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

ERMBERELENFEI0HRR
BRI ERE285E 2 185]
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BBV KR EERE165E 2185T
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments”)" #
BB ERE1H 2185
Amendments to HKAS 1
BRI ERNE1E 28]

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®
REEZHBEBEGSETEZRAWEEL EHTE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
E#MEBmHES &
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020

BEENTHE - B nE ([2020F 85T 1) 14
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)" ¢

M EZERFREE E ([20225F 87 1) ¢

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'

ERGTERNETER
BERMKHREERETI 55T

Amendments to HKAS 21

BRBGTERE215E 2185]

HREBHEZ I

R Z o] 52

Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022

Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of

Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

96

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at
the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Material Accounting Policies
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

98

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired set of activities
and assets include an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2023

2. S5 ER (&)
2.4 EREFTEE (&)

REBEQXRNERE (F)

MRHBPENRNRERBHEED
ENRE (R2TR)  REEETE
ENTE - AR REBBERERE
AfR - REBRABBENANEAZE
hi&  AREZRLFEFERERE
ARERE - RRABATE HERH
ENRNRAEEREREN A FE
RKHERGHREBNEMERETINE
PR o

EBAstREE

EBSOERAKELEIR - BENR
BRWBEPLFETE  AKE
FEREERKRBEMNAFE K
SEBRWELTAEEARENER
RS E AR EE RS EH
BATHIRBEAN - EEEK S M
5 AREEERRBUQFEIENL
WU 5 Al B B E R ERV LA - 5T
BRKBLBREEERERNIEE
PSR BT A AR DG FER
R o JRIRMRIER AP A H A A B
DR AFETE - WBHEERAR
EERZH -

rEBBEEHCRE-—AIBNEE
(B BERaEEREEHEIN
BRAMBAMBRE) -

EAREWE - EXKE  AEER
BA AR - WE B HIR A IROR &
HERGHARENESREERE
TR - MEHEEN D ERE
E o WIHFFEEESERAXITETA
HEEKBELETENDH -

35S 0f D BT - ZAIFAN
RIEEZHEWE BB FEERT
B MEMELAEENRZEREGE
ERREPHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

100

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

102

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the

party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

(i)

(i)
(i

the

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it

Solomon Systech (International) Limited |

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:
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Building BF
Leasehold improvements HEWEEE
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BHERRE
HERERERE

Furniture, fixtures, licenses
and equipment

Machinery and laboratory
equipment

Motor vehicles RE

Not depreciated

TFIHE

2%

20% or over the lease period,
whichever is shorter

20% IR (B EE B 2EE)
33.33%

12.50% to 33.33%

33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

104

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of no
more than eight years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leased properties 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Solomon Systech (International) Limited |

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace, are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income and debt instruments which are held for trading.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised
as finance income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 360 days past due. The Group
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default
based on reasonable and supportable information,
including the Group’s credit risk control practices and
the historical recovery rate of financial assets over 90
days past due. However, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

e B RS ERAR  EE

2. EFEGR (1)
2.4 EAREFTEE (E)

THMEERE

AEE AR D FEF ARG
FENERTARIABERABRE
B (FEREREL] - BHMEREX
DURBEHNERNNENRESREH
FEBRAPUBRNAERERE ZH
MEEAEE . REFRBERFZME
MAFRBER - FHRESRESEE
REHEEMFEERmHEME AT
FRNRERE  DIEHNERTITR
REVEB D °

— R T E

FEHERB AN MIERRER - HR)
B taTe R R I EERE IR NS AR
B - FREAE AB A AR KRR 1218
AR (128 AFEIIE B R) HEH
ENEHEHNERBARERE -
HRBNREIREEETEMOER
BB - ZE7E(E IR K E R TEH AR &R
FHRBERE  TWENSHR
L (FEBAEBEHEX) -

FEBRERE AHFEERTAR
REREBNREREEE KNG -
ETRAE > AEERBRBEBRE
BT ABAENIREMEDIGER A
HEMTARLEENNEMLE I

BHAERERBEXENER B
S5 R ATHE AR o

fid & & H A REHI360K » BIAREE
RREMEEEY - ARECSRES
ERAERBHERERAHOR ZE
WETE > ARENEREAKENEE
FEREEERKARBE0XN SR
EEMNBERWER - A EEHRA
SEFANEBEREER - ANEH
A RAIRIMBER B RAEET
RATREBH U E o R BB S A S HERF
HERMEEREEN - RUBSER
HeEWmENReERERMESRME
E o

gmxEmamRAT | 2023FE®w 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
structured products, to hedge its foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivative is taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials and
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

116

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future periods in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

118

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=N b e

2. EFEGR (1)
2.4 EAREFTEE (E)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated
circuits products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary
integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the
sale of proprietary integrated circuits products provide
customers volume rebates. The volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided
to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

120

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 26 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled
transactions. The fair value is measured initially at the
grant date and at each reporting date up to and including
the settlement date (note 26). The fair value is expensed
over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The cumulative expense recognised
for cash-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of awards that will ultimately vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

122

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China and overseas are required to participate
in a central retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central retirement benefit scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employers’ existing level of
contributions can be reduced by contributions forfeited by
the employers on behalf of those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling US$9,600 (2022: US$32,000)
were utilized during the year ended 31 December 2023
to reduce contributions and of US$4,200 forfeited
contribution was available as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
US$5,000) to reduce future years’ contributions.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China and
overseas are required to make contribution, no forfeited
contributions will be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those

benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS ERAR  EE

2. EFEGR (1)
2.4 EAREFTEE (E)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

124

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than US$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into US$ at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve except
to the extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group is exposed to fair
value or cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the
interest-bearing bank borrowing of the Group with fixed
interest rate. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures primarily arise from revenue and other income
generated, and cost and expenses incurred by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s operating units’
functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’
that have the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency, their foreign currency transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in US$. As HK$ is pegged to the US$
within a narrow band, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate.
Accordingly, management considers that the Group’s
foreign currency risk exposure for HK$ is not significant.

=N b e

MEERERE A FERA
FEERE

3.1 BI¥RAMEE

FEBETRTIEELENTIEARST
REE - SERR - FERBRKRE
MRk EEEFHIRSEERE
ZERBNBEREBMUT o

A= @B

FA2023F 128310 » AEEH R A
EEGERTEENEENEN AT
ERBREREFNRER - NEHB A7
WEEMFREFHE - K F1E
BEEZEEEERYTEARINZE
Izﬁo

S0 EE L B

TEBERSGHEERER - ZE5 Ak
FERBWAREENEAMUA - L
FEEBENUREBEEESNIIGEE
MU EREENRARESX - &K
SENELENUEBT (B
BIEEE Y » B £2023F K20224F
12B31AEFENMNERS » UK EL
IETHENENEREERABERR
EHR FELUETIE - HREBT
EETHME Rt AEEEHET,
BLEZFEHEETMNERER - F
It EEERAEREENBTINER
Bl RE K o

SMyEBERAT | 20234 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

126

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023

MBERER AFERD
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M20235F12H31H

12-month
ECLs
12{8 A Lifetime ECLs
RHEEER ERABHEERSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIKE FoRE HIWR  MLHEE @t
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TEn TER TERT TERT TEn
Trade receivables* FE Wz - - - 17,415 17,415
Financial assets included in ~ FJ& R EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables HEEEE
- Normal** ~-EE" 9,550 - - - 9,550
Pledged bank deposits SEANRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 6,000 - - - 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLLEEY
_ Not yet past due — kB 80,339 - - - 80,339
95,889 - - 17,415 113,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022
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3. MKEBRERE A FERA
FEERH (F)

3.1 PH¥EEEEE)
EERE (&)
BEERBRFLTH ()
20225 12A31H

12-month
ECLs
12184 Lifetime ECLs
BHEERSE ERREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE EoRER HIWE  BLIHER @t
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000
Ee E Ey E EY
Trade receivables* e - - - 23,761 23,761
Financial assets included in ~ FJ &R EMEKTRA
deposits and other receivables MEFEE
- Normal* —E&E™ 16,899 - - - 16,899
Pledged bank deposits SEBNRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 6,041 - - - 6,041
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEEN
- Not yet past due - RBH 45,556 - - - 45,556
68,496 - - 23,761 92,257

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * BBEREERERBGORERA/GLS
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EATREEBNER  RUER
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial RHF 23K 5E ©
statements.

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits * e NHEMERRTEENSmME
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when ENEREEERIMBEREAIE
they are not past due and there is no information indicating ®|  WAREEERFENBER
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit BREMEENEARMBEEIEM -
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of BH cRMEENEREERRA
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. 2[A5EM] -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, rEBHEMeRMEE (BERERE

which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other SEBEYREMERR) NEERK

receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a ERXRGEHLEAMESL  RaEKE
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ERZETANWKREME-

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 28%
(2022: 21%) and 70% (2022: 67%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest debtor and
the five largest debtors, respectively. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements.
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o 5 BIHE28% (2022F : 21% ) &
70% (20224 : 67% ) BEWAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

MEERERE A FERA
FEERH (F)

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 BIEAEMEZE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk 7 B R B
AEEEERESEEERAZAN
BEeERBRESEEY  UWEAKEEN
BERHESYERBSREREMN
FE . CHETHEEREEAES
HNEBESER-

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working
capital requirements regularly.

RBMEPR » AEBERSORBRM
REETNEREEINHEREAI W

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

128

undiscounted payments, is as follows: T
2023
No fixed term 3 to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
REEEN
BRER/ MBAZES
REREE DR3MEA M2f8A 1E56 i
US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
ey e Ee N Es
Financial liabilities included in ERRRABERHRR
trade and other payables Hemas 6,766 8,610 - = 15,376
Interest-bearing bank borrowings /T3t E &R - 1,663 - - 1,663
Lease liabilities HEaE - 271 708 573 1,552
6,766 10,544 708 573 18,591
2022
No fixed term 3toless
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
REETEN
BRER/ 3ERESD
REXEE DA M2f@A 125% @t
US$’000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
ey e ey e Es
Financial liabilities included in EATREEATA
trade and other payables NemeE 9,285 15,807 - - 25,092
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ R{T:EER - 1,423 - - 1,423
Lease liabilities HEEE - 220 1,127 699 2,046
9,285 17,450 1,127 699 28,561
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Group.

Fair value
The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amount that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

=N b e

MBEBREER AFERD

FEERH (F)

3.1

3.2

MEEREE (&)
EXEE

FEBMEAEENERERER/RESR
SESFECENREILESRRENE
AR UXIHHEBRBRRANE
RAEE-

REERBLEERESCREBEEE
HEMRSHEERAZEERERE -
BESRARERERE  AEERE
BEERTFRRDEBITHRG - RE
£2023F12H31H &2022F 12831
HIEFE EXEEEEZ  BEXRE

RAEBNEANBADBEB AEMS

*—- 3¢

B ©
~EE
RIEHESEMHBELIAFENSRT

B AEEERITANREENA
FEMT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
Financial assets tREE 2023 2022 2023 2022
US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn
Equity investment designated RATEETAHM
at fair value through other ZHBANEE
comprehensive income 1,161 1,161 1,161 1,161
Financial asset at fair value through ~ BAFEFABZEZ
profit or loss SHEE 2,522 - 2,522 -
3,683 1,161 3,683 1,161
SryEBEEAR | 2023555 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)

130

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income has
been estimated by observable prices or rates of sale of
similar assets. The fair value of other unlisted investment
has been estimated based on the surrender values, which
are calculated and quoted by the issuer. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value which is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which is recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that it was the
most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2023

=N b e

3. KEKBER A FERA
FEEKR (F)

3.2 A¥E (/)
D FEERH

TRHAPATAEEEHTAENARE
BT 245

EERAFETE
7A2023%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

NP EFENA

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RiER B 2 TABRE
miERE BARE BAYE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1E#R) (E2/E4R) (E3ER) act
US$’000 US$000 US$’000 US$000
TER TER TER TEn
Equity investment designated at fair &2 FEE AH
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMKRE
income - 1,161 - 1,161
Financial asset at fair value through ~ BAFEFABZZ
profit or loss SREE = 2,522 - 2,522
- 3,683 - 3,683

As at 31 December 2022

20225 12H31H

Fair value measurement using

AVEHEAR

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

RER IER Ok :ES

T5HRE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1ER) (%2R (3B st
Us$:000 Us$000 Us$’000 Us$'000
EYH EYH EYH e

Equity investment designated at fair &2 FEEF A
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWRAHRE

income - 1,161 - 1,161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

4. BERETEER A E

4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the sale of products.

Certain contracts for the sale of products include volume
rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating
the variable consideration, the Group is required to use
either the expected value method or the most likely amount
method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of products
with volume rebates, the Group determined that using the most
likely amount method is appropriate. The selected method that
better predicts the amount of variable consideration related
to volume rebates is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
method is used for those contracts with a single volume
threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined
that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained
based on its historical experience, business forecast and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on
the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit using key
assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2023 was US$4,836,000
(2022: US$5,089,000).
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on deposits and other
receivables

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable companies
with published credit ratings. As at 31 December 2023, the
probability of default applied ranged from 0.4% to 0.9% (2022:
0.4% to 0.9%) and the loss given default was estimated to
be 100% (2022: 100%). In the situation where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate
applied where there were no comparable companies as at 31
December 2023 was 100% (2022: 100%).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below
their carrying amount. Due to changes in technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories was
US$27,920,000 (2022: US$48,221,000).
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as
market interest rates when available.

Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
design, development and sales of proprietary IC products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment,
i.e., the design, development and sales of IC products and
system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the Executive Directors and senior management led by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Directors and
senior management reviewed the Group’s internal reporting
as a whole to assess performance and allocate resources.
A management approach has been used for the operating
segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$153,151,000 and US$190,843,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly
operates in Hong Kong. During 2023, the Group’s products
were mainly sold to customers located in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Taiwan, USA, Japan and Europe.
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5. Segment information and disaggregation 5. 2 HERREEE D E (&)

of revenue (continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated
by geographical markets

(a) BBFTHEIBHEFEHNRE

2023 2022

US$’000 us$’000

FEx FEx

Hong Kong a8 83,465 107,126
Mainland China e lEiPNS 2,224 8,702
Taiwan =) 16,812 32,973
Europe BUM 24,662 19,124
Japan SN 22,410 17,763
Korea =45 188 418
South East Asia R 154 650
USA ESE1 3,139 3,376
Others Hib 97 711
153,151 190,843

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which
customers are located.

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated
by product types

HEEREFAELE BRDHE -

(b) RERBEIBNEFEONWE

2023 2022

US$’000 us$’000

SEEn ETT

New Display ICs FAFE/RICs 72,167 87,827
OLED Display ICs OLEDZERRICs 15,887 24,778
Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs BB REBHIEEEICs 59,125 66,953
Large Display ICs REFERICs 5,972 11,285
153,151 190,843

(c) Revenue from contracts with customers that was (c) EEHNEBYTRABELREHINE

F&#KWaE

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

TRETRBEHINESEANER
THRIA/AHREHANN D S5

2023 2022
US$°000 US$’000
FER FET
Revenue recognised that was RBEHNESEENEET
included in contract liabilities WERRNKESEE !
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Sales of ICs $HEICs 6,832 1,480
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5. Segment information and disaggregation 5. 2 ERREEE D E (&)
of revenue (continued)

Non-current assets (d) ¥RBEE

2023 2022

US$’000 US$’000

FEx x5

Hong Kong BE 1,403 3,865

Mainland China R K BE 3,953 3,983

Taiwan =)= 1,632 1,511

6,988 9,359

(e)

(f)

(9)

Non-current assets are listed based on the locations of

3’Fu|b§j}§§1 (;F@Aél"ﬂ’éé) J_.H‘E

assets which exclude financial assets. BEENFEMFTUSE -
Capital expenditures (e) EXRBX
2023 2022
US$’000 US$'000
:F;TE 7<7E
Property, plant and equipment E - BERRE
Mainland China A B A B 759 1,907
Hong Kong BE 328 561
Taiwan =01 - 64
1,087 2,532

Capital expenditures are listed based on the locations of
assets.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the largest
customer was located in Hong Kong, the second largest
customer was located in Europe and the third largest
customer was located in Japan. Sales to them were
US$56,534,000, US$22,565,000 and US$22,410,000
respectively which were all over 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
largest customers was located in Hong Kong. Sales to
that customer was US$71,151,000 and over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue. No other customer contributes more
than 10% of total revenue in 2022.

Performance obligation
Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from date of delivery. Some contracts provide
customers with volume rebates which give rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

(f)

(9)
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B R M R

6. Profit before tax 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

B B¢ A 28 7
AEBOBRBADERDENR, GTA) T

(crediting): JIRIEREE
2023 2022
Notes US$’000 US$’000
HiEE FEx ETT
Cost of goods sold $HE KA 104,982 112,718
Product engineering costs EmIERAE 2,642 9,182
Provision for obsolete or slow moving B A5 1F & AU EHE -
inventories, net FE 22 1,211 12,013
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEHE 15 - 504
Depreciation of property, plant and W - R RERE
equipment E 16 1,387 1,293
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEERNE 17 1,391 1,355
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BER
plant and equipment BB E ks 7 (3) (©)
Loss on termination of lease #KIEFAEEX 17(c) 11 -
Lease payments not included in the HEXHTERE®RE
measurement of lease liabilities HEBGBZTE 17(c) 46 64
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ HihEWR KT BE
impairment loss of other (E#) /E5E*
receivables and deposits*® 23 (120) 92
Reversal of impairment loss of trade  J& IR 5% Rl & &5 18 @ 43¢
receivables” 23 (91) (6)
Gain from dissolution of subsidiaries* F 72 &4 ¥ 5+ - (86)
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 MImSHIHE
from lessor HERR 17(b) = (76)
Foreign exchange differences, net INEEERFE (1,380) (1,366)
Auditor’s remuneration RN & 155 148
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®RAEX (BEES
directors’ emoluments (Note 11)): & (FFFE11)) -
- Salaries, allowances, bonuses - e RRE - AR
and other benefits H 48 F 21,440 23,997
- Equity-settled share option - UEREEN
expense BRERX 274 496
- Pension scheme contributions - BB
(defined contribution (REMHE)
schemes)** 375 337
- Termination benefits - #KIEER 46 78
22,135 24,908

* The balances are included in “other income and gains - net”
for gains and “other expense” for losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
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7. Other income and gains - net 7. Ht ARz — FHE

2023 2022

US$°000 US$’000

FER E

Government grants* BUT 4 B~ 677 1,898
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEMZE - MERKE

plant and equipment 1H B k& 3 3

Gain from dissolution of a subsidiary FRAREEFB - 86

Reversal of impairment loss of trade FE W SRR B S 1R B 4

receivables 91 6
Reversal of impairment loss of other HAi KR T 2 RE

receivables and deposits Ei=VEIk e 120 -

Others Hith 11 9

902 2,002

* Various government grants have been received for the Group’s * FR REBNHRBECEERBHGF

research and development projects during the year. There are no
unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants.

Other expenses

# o
8. HMpX

ey WRAEELERRERNRBITR

2023 2022
US$’°000 US$’000
FEx FEn
Impairment loss of other receivables and HMEWR R REESE

deposits - 92
Others Hih - 62
- 154

Finance income - net 9. REWA— F5
2023 2022
US$’000 us$’000
FEx EpTy
Interest income F B WA 2,547 363
Interest on bank loans RITEMNFE X H (14) (36)
Interest on lease liabilities HESEWANEXEH (63) (81)
2,470 246
SRy HEEREAR | 2023FF% 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

10.Five highest paid employees 10. 58 HFMES

One (2022: one) of the five highest-paid employees of the
Group is a director, details of the Company whose emolument
is set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

Details of the emoluments for the year of the other four (2022:
four) highest-paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive officer of the Company are as follows:

XEBREBRESHATEE— R (2022
F:—R)AQADES HNESCRYT K
RARMFEI1IRAR o

BT 2MBFESRIFTHAR (2022
FmB)ESFHFALHMESMOT

2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx Epv

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and FreRRR
other benefits TEALAEAIEF 610 596
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 425 454
Contribution to pension scheme 3R REF B 29 26
1,064 1,076

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FEERITHRABRSHFEENTHNEE
mE

Number of individuals

Emolument bands (HK$) AR

<& E (BT) 2023 2022
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 3
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

=N b e

NEERTHARHNE

BiELEHRAREB QT KAL $E383(1)
(@~ b c)ROERATE (FEESFHR
ER) RO EoM M BERFEFE2EERIT
BAHMSMT :

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023

HZ2023F12ANALFEES M

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind® contributions payment Total
#ER Bihe
He HiERO HE 3 RER X @t
US$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$°000
TEn TEL FE5r TET FER
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Chan Chi Kong (a) ) 8 - - - 8
Kwok Hoi Sing (a) 8 (a) 7 - - - 7
Leung Heung Ying (b) R2H(b) 27 - - 32 59
Sheu Wei Fu (b) 4% () 2 - - 3 57
Chan Philip Ching Ho REZ 34 - - 32 66
101 - - 96 197
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
Ma Yuchuan X - - - - -
Wang Hui I - - - - -
Kang Jian ] - - - - -
Executive Director BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEL - 680 14 78 772
- 680 14 78 172
101 680 14 174 969
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s NEERTHARNE (F)
remuneration (continued)

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2022

BZE00E12A31ALEEES HE

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions payment Total
| FeR  EAE &
He Hib R0 HE S RO h
US$'000 US$°000 Us$’000 US$°000 Us$000
TEn Tin Fin Tin Tin
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Leung Heung Ying RIH 33 - - 22 55
Sheu Wei Fu HEPS 30 - - 22 52
Chan Philip Ching Ho REZ 31 - - 22 53
94 - - 66 160
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan EXI - - - - -
Wang Hui IE - - - - -
Kang Jian Bl - - - - -
Executive Director BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEL - 659 14 83 756
- 659 14 83 756
94 659 14 149 916
Notes: M -
(a) Appointed on 1 November 2023. (@) M2023F11B1EEZME-
(b) Resigned on 1 November 2023. (b) M2023FE11B1B BT -
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group (2022: Nil). During the year, there was no
compensation for loss of office was paid by the Group to the
directors (2022: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2022: Nil).

(i)

(i)

Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium,
termination benefits and other allowances.

This represents the amount charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss under the requirements of
HKFRS 2 Share-based payments. During the current and
prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 26 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

=N b e
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B R M R

12. Income tax 12. FRBH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the AEBREANBUATEE 2 TEABRKE
current period as the Group has available tax losses brought EETAUKERREE 2ERBER
forward from prior periods to offset the assessable profits HLIBIERFEEBRNEGHEE BB
generated during the current period. Hong Kong profits tax FERERTERBBEENETERH
had been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated AR 16.5%5T1R o BN B R AR IE A
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the prior years. SENEERER IR 2B AR RS
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at Ho
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx Ey
Current - Hong Kong and Elsewhere: EIHi — & K&EH
Charge for the year FAXZH 45 83
Total income tax expense e 2% 45 83
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BRARRKABSEBEAERER (ARG REK
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax HAOMBARMERLZEEEBNEEN
rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority R) ST EHIBRF AN F A B E B B iR AR
of its subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax expense at the EEERFERGTENRIERIHEROT ¢
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:
2023 2022
US$°000 US$’000
FEx x5
Profit before tax BR B4 A1 E A 19,488 27,907
Income tax calculated at a tax rate Fri§Hi1£16.5%
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (20224 : 16.5% ) 3t & 3,216 4,604
Difference in tax rates for other Hiha 2EBEN
jurisdictions BEEZR (242) 964
Losses attributable to associates e NTWE KX 2 19
Income not subject to tax BERT N (1,907) (1,777)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 1,924 3,637
Tax losses utilised from previous £ A LAF A R i 1R
periods e (3,656) (2,863)
Tax losses not recognised REIRIEEE 2,260 -
Effect of additional tax deduction BRERBAERENRENR 2 E
enacted by tax authority (1,504) (4,574)
Others H b (48) 73
Tax charge at the Group’s effective ~ EAEBEEBRHERFE 2
rate HIEMAX 45 83
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13. Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
based on the Group’s profit in 2023 attributable to owners
of the parent of US$19,443,000 (2022: US$27,833,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,495,151,529 (2022:
2,493,903,036) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

=N b e

13. 5RER

(a)

(b)

BREXEF

BREXRBIAEZERERAQIANE
B AERAREBER2023F 2 & F
19,443,000 T (20224 : 27,833,000
ERX)RAFRNECRITEBRMNE
¥ 82,495,151,5290% (20224 :
2,493,903,036/%) 5T &

BREFERFN
BERBEFRFNDREARTAFEN
BEARGAEEGENRERFRHR

BEEEBELENCRITEERE
HARR ZMEFIIEBRETEH -

?—3 IR g1 B BB E R S H

—,i

Number of shares

RADEE

2023 2022

Weighted average number of ERTEBERMETFHE

ordinary shares in issue 2,495,151,529 2,493,903,036
Effect of dilution — weighted BEoTE-SZBRME

average number of ordinary Y BRE

shares: share options - 1,373,259
Adjusted weighted average RETESREERF

number of ordinary shares WRBRSER

for diluted earnings per share hnAEF 19 R

calculation 2,495,151,529 2,495,276,295

14. Dividend 14. R B

No dividend for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 was
declared or paid by the Company. In addition, the Board resolved
not to propose final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2028.

2 ENR B BEIRK T & £2023%2022

F12A31ALEEZRE
RETERE

cHBE EEF
JRE £2023%F12A31H Lt

FEYRERE -

mM¥E

EamRAT | 2023EF®R 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

15. BIEEE

Patents and

15. Intangible assets

intellectual
Goodwill property Total
B R
(5SS HEERE @t
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E ES ET
31 December 2022 20229 12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of 20224F1 A1 B RASRE R
accumulated amortisation HET s - 505 505
Amortisation provided during the year FR#H - (504) (504)
Exchange realignment [E SRR - (1) (1)

At 31 December 2022 HR2022%F12H31H - - -

At 31 December 2022 M2022512A31H
Cost AN 2,317 21,517 23,834

Accumulated amortisation g F - (13,529) (13,529)
Accumulated impairment ZtEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount REDFE - - -

31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023 and

31 December 2023

2023F12H31H
M2023F1A1BA R
2023%12A31H

Cost A 2,317 21,517 23,834

Accumulated amortisation g F - (13,529) (13,529)
Accumulated impairment ZEHEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount REDFE - - -

Amortisation expense of nil (2022: US$504,000) has been
charged in research and development costs.

#8589 X T ot (20224 : 504,000% 7T) B
MR R BB R AP Y -
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16. Property, plant and equipment

16. M5 - HBERRE

Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and

Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
FER
i HENE BEE#E. BER
kEF £ FURRRE ERERHE RE @5t
Us$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$'000
T£n Txn Tin F£n T£n T£n
31 December 2023 2023%12A31H
At 1 January 2023 1#2023%1A1H
Cost A 1,682 2,742 6,757 14,807 156 26,234
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHiE (277) (2,446) (5,893) (12,417) (100) (21,133)
Accumulated impairment 2 HE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount BRFE 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
At 1 January 2023, netof  R2023F1R1RHR
accumulated depreciation ZTERAE
and impairment 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
Additions "E - 176 568 343 - 1,087
Disposals B - - (1) - - (1)
Depreciation provided during  FR{TE
the year (20) (172) (486) (681) (28) (1,387)
Exchange realignment EHAE 4 (4 81 (70) - 48
At 31 December 2023, net of  #2023%F12A31 B
accumulated depreciation BRESHTERAE
and impairment 1,426 296 1,015 2,071 28 4,836
At 31 December 2023 12023%12531A
Cost A 1,731 2,705 7,004 14,834 156 26,520
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (305) (2,409) (6,068) (12,762) (128) (21,672
Accumulated impairment Z3tHE - - (1) (1) = (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 296 1,015 2,07 28 4,836

Depreciation expense of US$620,000 (2022: US$640,000) has
been included in cost of sales, US$95,000 (2022: US$68,000)
in research and development costs and US$672,000 (2022:

US$585,000) in administrative expenses.

T E & 620,000 7T (20224 : 640,000
X)) BETAEERA ST AR KB
E M £95,000%E T (20224 : 68,000%
Jt) » FTATER X A672,0003% 7T (2022
£ : 585,000% 7T) °

RMAXERERLT
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16. Property, plant and equipment 16. 1% - B RRE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold  licenses and laboratory Motor
and building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
BwE-
1 BEME EEkE. HER
kEF & HUERRE ERERGK RE @t
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
EYr ey ey EYy ey EYr
31 December 2022 2022%12531H
At 1 January 2022 12022%141H
Cost A 1,910 2,763 6,293 14,536 156 25,658
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (292) (2,392) (5,750) (12,887) (56) (21,377)
Accumulated impairment ZiTHE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269

At 1 January 2022, net of R2022E1 B1BEK
accumulated depreciation ~ BiTERWEE

and impairment 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269
Additions hE - 92 797 1,643 - 2,532
Depreciation provided during  ER{TE

the year 1) (159) (396) (673) (44) (1,293)
Exchange realignment ERHE (192) (8) (80) (139) - (419)

At 31 December 2022, net of 78202251231
accumulated depreciation REFHERAE

and impairment 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
At 31 December 2022 12022512A31R
Cost K 1,682 2,742 6,757 14,897 156 26,234
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHHTE 277) (2,446) (5,893) (12,417) (100) (21,133)
Accumulated impairment ZiTHE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount RHFE 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
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17. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has leases contracts for various office properties
and motor vehicles used in its operations. Leases of leased
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years,
while motor vehicles generally have leases between 1 and 4
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

17.

=N b e

HE
AEBERFEA

AEEZSHESRAARPLIERAER
REEKEE - HEYXEBAYPEERI1ES
FoMAENEBEERIZ4F - — KM
5 AKERAEAREEMUIIATERER
DHBEEE -

(a) EREEE
FEENERAEEERAERANFE

and the movements during the year are as follows: SEOT
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEMZE RE HT
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E3 E3 EH
At 1 January 2022 RA202251 818 2,308 7 2,315
Additions wE 699 - 699
Lease modification on extending FERIEH ZHEEET
lease term 143 - 143
Depreciation charge e (1,348) (7) (1,355)
At 31 December 2022 and MR2022F128318 K
1 January 2023 2023%1H81H 1,802 - 1,802
Additions nE 740 - 740
Lease modification on extending LR ZHEEET
lease term 497 - 497
Early termination of lease REZLILHEEERT
arrangement (257) (257)
Depreciation charge e (1,391) - (1,391)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12831H 1,391 - 1,391
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17. Leases (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

150

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

17. HE (&)
(b) HEAE

HEEENREBRAFEZEHM

during the year are as follows: T
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FER ET
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1HEREE 1,996 2,531
New leases S 740 699
Lease modification on extending lease ERMBEHZHEET
term 497 143
Early termination of lease arrangement REBXRIEBEEES (246) -
Accretion of interest recognised during ANEEFSAE M
the year ®’E 63 81
COVID-19-related rent concession from  2019BARFSHIEE
lessor HER% - (76)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR 2 (56) (70)
Payments ENEN (1,488) (1,312)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12B31BEREIE 1,506 1,996
Analysed into: DWAT -
Within one year —FR 985 1,304
After one year but within two years —FE L L BEMEUR 339 692
After two years but within three years MEULEE=FUR 182 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

3 to the financial statements.

The Group applied the practical expedient to all eligible
COVID-19-related rent concessions granted by the lessors

during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

B FESK & ©

HEEENIHARR DRI BEHE

A2022F12A31BFEE  A&EED
RAATEEFEEEFRESER

2019 B mSHEHRESR R

(c) MESEXRBERNBEEIHNT :

2023 2022

US$’000 us$’000

FEn EpI

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,391 1,355

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHHEE 2 HEEA 46 64

Interest on lease liabilities HESENFAEXZEH 63 81

Loss on termination of lease #wIEFEEB X 11 -
COVID-19-related rent concession from  2019E R F=HAEE

lessors HERR - (76)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RAEBRREZNEATH 1,511 1,424

Solomon Systech (International) Limited |
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18. Investments in associates 18. REEE R BN E
2023 2022
US$°000 US$’000
FER ETT
Share of net assets BiEFEE 761 968
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEQNTANFMABROT :
Place of Percentage of equity
registration/ Particulars of attributable to the Company
incorporation registered capital/ RAREEEREAL
Associated companies and operation Principal activities issued shares
MR AMELR BRI
BEnTF EEHE TEXEK RBHFHE 2023 2022
Beijing LED Energy PRC LED system design RMB20,000,000 23.5% 23.5%
Management Technology ~#El and contract 20,000,000 A R#
Co. Ltd. installation
T RERR RN R G LEDZ &R
ARAH IRRE
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000 25.0% 25.0%
HEINERAF B manufacturing & 38,000,000/ 7T
distribution of LCD
modules
Bt B AR
PERBETRFESR
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial Tﬁpﬁﬁﬁﬁ’élﬁﬁ S N T BB FE(=
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually BRI IEE K :
material:
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
Share of the associates’ losses and E{EHE NTARFEEBLR
total comprehensive loss for the %E}Eﬁﬁ
year (14) (114)
Aggregate carrying amount of REBRBE QT
the Group’s investments in the RENREAEE
associates 761 968
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Fa)

B 85 ¥ AR B AE

19. Subsidiaries 19. i A A

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARAREFEWNBARFHABTROT ¢
follows:

Place of registration/

incorporation Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Particulars of capital Interest held
£H HRAIBEREER TEEEREEHY Rast KRR
Solomon Systech Limited HK, LLC Design, development, sales of IC 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each ~ 100%
fNEERAR and system solutions, HK

Jing Guang Semiconductors

&% ARLT

PRG, LLC

(Dongguan) Limited HE > BRAF
REEEYERARLT
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited ~ PRC, LLC

BRNE () BRAT

Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited

BRNRROARAE
Solomon Systech (China) Limited
2R (1E) BRAA

Sentron, Inc.

hE - BRAF

Taiwan, LLC
2% BRAA

PRC, LLC
hE BRAT

Korea, LLC
g8 ARAR

Fit RE > HERNERERAE
?mﬁg/\kﬁﬁ ! E‘/ﬁ

Manufacturing of IC, Mainland China

RERHERER - T8

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
FHRIBERERES TE

Design and development of IC Taiwan

R RARRHERES A

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
FHRIBERERES TH

Application R&D, Korea
ERMY 2E

500,000,000k § REE 12T HEER

US$7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%

7,500,000% TEEMRARER

HK$16,000,000 registered and 100%
paid up capital

16,000,008 12 MR 2 HEER

5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each ~ 100%

5,000,000k EREE 105 2R EER
US$34,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
34,000,000 2HMRARER

80,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each ~ 52%

80,000 B REES, 000E T HEER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

152

Solomon Systech (International) Limited

Annual Report 2023

E% A5 ERFASIAATZHEART
BEREAKREFNEENAKNEEFE
ZEE% P& BEERREINHEMMEL

BAzHBEEEENBRAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. Equity investment designated at fair

21.

=N b e

20 BAFEEFARMEERK

value through other comprehensive mHRERE
income
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx E3
Equity investment designated BAFEEFAEMEZEKEHN
at fair value through other RERE
comprehensive income
Club debenture BHES 1,161 1,161

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
US$2,938,000 (2022: US$6,412,000). The pledged deposits
denominated in US dollars amounted to US$6,000,000
(2022: US$6,041,000) were pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

21.

RFAYEBARATF |

FEERRRERHKMMEME  RERE
AAEEREEAFEETARMEE

W 25

BeRAESEBEYREEH
(SN

RIFEPR XEEBUARE TAR
¥ ) FHENIR $ RIR 1T 482 52,938,000
ZE 7T (20224 : 6,412,000 7T) o LLETT
sHE 2 B 17 5 £ 48 46,000,000 T
(20224 : 6,041,000% 7t) @ B FE T
GRERTHREAZ - ARBTITEHRR
BAEHEMEY  BIRE P E K CIMNE
SEEMN)R(EE -EERNESTER
E) AEBEEEEREREETIINESE
BHWERTHBRAREBLBEMER -

RITERREZ ARITERFREZZBHF
WAL - EHERFEROHARZ1KX
EIERAE  RFAKENNKEESE
RME - WRE B KIS 8 E 17 RRF R B
WAS - RITEHRRSEPRITERETR
REBRFNRIT  THEENLHE -
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B R M R

22. Inventories 2. &

2023 2022
US$’000 us$’000
FEx FEx
Finished goods K 2,537 5,635
Raw materials and work in progress EMRRERER 40,599 57,586
43,136 63,221

Provision for obsolete or slow moving B FHTFE
inventories BRI (15,216) (15,000)
27,920 48,221

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to US$104,982,000 (2022:

US$112,718,000).

Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow moving

inventories are as follows:

R BT AHERANTF B ARE
104,982,0003 7T (20224 : 112,718,000
E

BRI FEFENRENZE I2FOT

2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
At 1 January M1B1H 15,000 3,725
Scrap of inventories against provision FERENREE (995) (738)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BRENFEFE
inventories, net R EFEE 1,211 12,013
At 31 December M12A31H 15,216 15,000
23. Trade and other receivables, 2. BB R HMEWRK B
prepayments and deposits ARET£
2023 2022
Notes US$°000 US$’000
MiEE FEx FEx
Trade receivables FEWFR 12,477 19,227
Trade receivables from related parties B B T FE LR 36 4,938 4,534
Impairment WERE (123) (214)
Trade receivables — net W —F58 17,292 23,547
Other receivables, prepayments and HibEWR - FBEIRK
deposits HA 14,344 22,700
Prepayments to related parties BAEE 5 TR 36 221 221
Impairment AR ME (40) (160)
Trade and other receivables, JE W R e LAt B LKURR
prepayments and deposits SCANE S EI S
— current portion —mE 31,817 46,308
Other receivables, prepayments and Hit W ~ EARR
deposits HES
- non-current portion —ERH 679 3,117
32,496 49,425
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23. Trade and other receivables,

prepayments and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables from
corporate customers were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90
days. As at 31 December 2023, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss allowance,

=N b e

23 BRI R EMEWRRR - AN

M€ (&)

A2023F12A31  AEFBH L EE
FrEWREEHEEAI0E0H - B
2023F12H31H ' EW R B ERHK
HRBERENRESMOT :

is as follows:
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx Epv
1-30 days 1-30H 12,102 11,658
31-60 days 31-60H 2,430 3,728
61-90 days 61-90H 1,257 2,785
91-180 days 91-180H 1,197 4,431
181-360 days 181-360H - 945
over 360 days ##Bi8360H 306 -
17,292 23,547
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade ERFRERESESOT
receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx ET
At beginning of year RER] 214 220
Reversal of impairment losses ERIEAEIRE (91) (6)
At end of year RER 123 214

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

BEBRSAMERBRBERETRED
o Ut EEHEREE - BERERA
BEOBAEANZEZTFHNDANB
IR (AR EE) et ERIR T8
EMEAR  ERBEEEARKREAH
AESHENBESMH BRI ARRE
RERRFINEENITZFEE - —R
= BURNBHEB-FYARZH
ERE RSB T LG -
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23. Trade and other receivables, 23.
prepayments and deposits (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Expected credit

BRZREEMEBEWR - BN
MR & (&)

AT S5 AN B A B B i 0 R R 1=
EREkE

72023%F12H31H

Gross carrying Expected credit

loss rate amount losses

EHEEERE R E & FEHEEER

% US$’000 US$’000

Bokk FEx FEx

Past due Lng st

Current RiBHA 14,533 =
1 to 30 days 1-30H 2,310 ="
31 to 60 days 31-60H 143 ="

61 to 90 days 61-90H . - -

Over 90 days HiB0H 28.67 429 123

17,415 123

As at 31 December 2022

Expected credit

A2022F12A31H

Gross carrying  Expected credit

loss rate amount losses
FEHEEFEER IREE FEHEEEE
% US$’000 us$’000
Bt FEx FER

Past due B
Current RiBE 0.42 18,141 76
1 to 30 days 1-30H 0.38 3,341 12
31 to 60 days 31-60H 0.66 905 6
61 to 90 days 61-90H 1.80 267 5
Over 90 days HiEB90H 10.39 1,107 115
23,761 214

*

The expected credit loss rates were less than 0.1%.

*k

Based on management's assessment, the expected credit losses
were minimal.

For financial assets included in other receivables and deposits,
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the
probability of default applied ranged from 0.40% to 0.90%
(2022 ranged from 0.40% to 0.90%) and the loss given default
was estimated to be 100%. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23. Trade and other receivables, 2. EWRRHEMEWRNK BN
prepayments and deposits (continued) MRET & (&)
The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of other HittEW R RTRESBEESE M
receivables and deposits are as follows: T
2023 2022
US$°000 US$’000
FER EYM
At the beginning of year RED 160 68
(Reversal of impairment losses)/losses WE () &E (120) 92
At end of year RER 40 160
24.Financial asset at fair value through 24. AT EFABEZEREE
profit or loss
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx EH
Other unlisted investment, at fair value: HidE EmRE  LAREE 2,522 -
The above unlisted investment was structured product issued Ptk EFHIREBRPEKRREZRITERE
by a bank in Mainland China. It was mandatorily classified MER  ZEABEEFFEHFHMIEAR
as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as its ARBEFAERZEREE  HEWRE
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and REVHEAIFEREREREERSHN
interest. FE o
25, Issued capital 25, B BT A
2023 2022
Number of Number of
shares US$’000 shares  US$°000
vy 4! TER RpEE EY
Authorised: EE
- Ordinary shares of -SREAE10BTH
HK$0.10 each ZER 5,000,000,000 64,433 5,000,000,000 64,433
Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE :
At 1 January M1B1H 2,494,352,351 32,149 2,492,352,351 32,123
Exercise of share options (i)  {TEEEARRE(i) 1,300,000 17 2,000,000 26
At 31 December MW12A31H 2,495,652,351 32,166 2,494,352,351 32,149
() The subscription rights attaching to 1,300,000 (2022: (i) 1,300,00017 (20224 : 2,000,00017)
2,000,000) share options were exercised at the 8 IR RE R 75 Y SR BB AE LA N RE 13 53 8
weighted average subscription price of HK$0.2181 BE&MKR0.2181/8 Tt (20224 : 0.20178
(2022: HK$0.201) per share (note 26), resulting in the JU) (MI5E26) MUREBEITF » BB
issue of 1,300,000 (2022: 2,000,000) ordinary shares 171,300,0008% (20224 : 2,000,000
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of BB HNBERNELBESRKE
approximately US$37,000 (2022: US$52,000). An amount # #937,0003 T (20224 : 52,000
of approximately US$10,000 (2022: US$10,000) was ER) o REBRETERZ —£48
transferred from the equity compensation reserve to share 10,0003 7T (20224 : 10,0003 7T) By
premium account upon the exercise of the share options. THEABREMBRARDREIR -
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26. Equity compensation scheme

(a) The Share Option Scheme

158

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 28 May 2013. The terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The 2013
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013, being the date
of adoption of such scheme by the shareholders of the
Company. The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make an offer for
the grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
provide the participants (directors, employees, advisers,
consultants, agents, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, service providers, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, etc., of
any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme or 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying
participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the
date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board may
specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.
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26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)
(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of share option shall be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion in accordance
with the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. The
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The 2013 Share Option Scheme expired in May
2023.

The number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2023 was 29,600,000.

The following share options under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

=N b e

26. MR 7~ FE o ¥R B 5T &) (&)

(a)

BRESE (8|

F013E BT BRI AET - &
ESEARBHENTLBRENR
BE - TAENBERENZBEEAR
UTHESE  @ROREEHBH
EBXAEEBERMIRTE: &
(o) fp £ B2 i B Hi RIS & % B
HEBXERBREXRAIFIRSD
18 - 20138 R T 81T M20235F 58
25 -

20235128318 » & $£29,600,000
BREMBRERETE-

FR - 2013 RE B RITEBR
BHEBENT :

2023 2022
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFITEE  BREHE MEEHTEE BREZA
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of year READ 0.705 27,150,000 0.717 27,300,000
Granted during the year FRERE 0.470 5,900,000 0.530 5,900,000
Exercised during the year FRETRE 0.218  (1,300,000) 0.201 (2,000,000)
Lapsed/forfeited during the year SR, HE 0.649  (2,150,000) 0.782 (4,050,000)
At end of year RER 0.684 29,600,000 0.705 27,150,000

The weighted average share closing price of the
Company's ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was HK$0.489 (31 December
2022: HK$0.720) per ordinary share.

During the year, movements in the number of share
options outstanding under the 2013 share option scheme
and the related exercise prices are as follows:

mM¥E

B E2023F12A31ALEE £ E
ZERETEAZANAQATEER
MEFEHPUHEASRZER.489
B 7t (202251283108 : 0.7208
JT) °

FRA - BER2013BIREFTEIE RITHE

BRESENSBRATETEESD
BUT :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M R

26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

26. MR 72 o ¥R A 5T & (4&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) HBRfESHE (&)
Number of share options (in thousand units)
BREZA (ATFas)

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on

price 1 January Forfeited 31 December

per share 2023 Granted Exercised during 2023

HK$ 20235 during during  the period 20235
Grant date BRTHEE 1A1A the period  the period BAE 12A31H Vesting period Exercise period
REAH B BE  BRERE BRETE B/ HE BE BEH L]
30 December 2019 0.159 50 - - (50) - 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 to
2019E12 8308 29 December 2021 31 December 2023
2019127300 2022F1820%
2021128298 2023127310
17 July 2020 0.2454 1,000 - (500) (500) - 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
202078178 16 July 2022 18 July 2024
2020%7R17HE 2022575190
202275168 2024E7H18H
30 October 2020 0.201 800 - (800) - - 30 October 2020to 1 November 2021 to
20205108308 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
2020F10A30HZ 20215118182
2021458278 2023%10R31H
1 June 2021 0.840 3,000 - - - 3,000 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
2021F6A1A 202156A1A 31 May 2024
202256810
2024F5A31H
0.840 2,400 - - - 2,400 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
202156810 Z 2022F6A1HZ
2022%5R31R 2024554310
8 December 2021 0.790 5,600 - - (640) 4,960 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
2021F1258H 7 June 2022 7 June 2024
202112880 % 2022F678H %
2022%6A7H 2024%6A7H
0.790 8,400 - - (960) 7,440 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
7 June 2023 6 June 2025
2021F12H8RE 2023F6A8HE
2023F6A7H 20255676A
22 June 2022 0.530 3,000 - - - 3,000 22 June 2022 From 23 June 2023 to
202267220 2022%66R22H 20 June 2025
202356230 E
2025F6/20H
0.530 2,400 - - - 2,400 22 June 2022 to  From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
H2022F6A22F  H2023F6A823AZ
2023%6R21H 2025567 20A
0.530 250 - - - 250 22 June 2022 to  From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
M2022F6A22F  M2023F6523A%
2023F6A21H 202564208 It
0.530 250 - - - 250 22 June 2022 to  From 24 June 2024 to
21 June 2024 23 June 2026
H2022F6A222  M2024E6F24A2
2024F68218 202665230 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

=N b e

26. MR 7~ fE & SR = &) (&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) RS E (E)
Number of share options (in thousand units)
BRE#E (T

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on

price 1 January Forfeited 31 December

per share 2023 Granted Exercised during 2023

HK$ 20235 during during  the period 120235
Grant date SRITHEE 1A1H the period the period BRE 12A318 Vesting period Exercise period
RLAH BT BE  HRCRE  BRBTE  38/KE BE HREY s
24 March 2023 0.546 - 250 - - 250 24 March 2023 to 25 March 2024 to
2023F3/24H 24 March 2024 24 March 2026
M2023F3A240%E  H2024E3H25 %
2024%3524R 202635248
0.546 - 250 - - 250 24 March 2023 to 25 March 2025 to
24 March 2025 24 March 2027
H202353R24AZ H2025%35250
2025%3A24A B2027%3A24R
25 May 2023 0.463 - 3,000 - - 3,000 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
2025%5525H 2023F5A25H 25 May 2025
2023550250
2025F508250
0.463 - 2,400 - - 2,400 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
2023F5A25H 25 May 2025
2023550250 %
202555250

Total
Ch 27,150 5,900 (1,300) (2,150) 29,600

At the end of the reporting period, the total number of
share options which are exercisable under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme is 28,850,000 (2022: 12,850,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
29,600,000 share options outstanding under the 2013
Share Option Scheme during the year. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
29,600,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately US$2,611,000
(before issue expenses).

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$997,000 (HK$0.17 each) (2022: HK$1,267,000,
HK$0.21 each), of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of US$274,000 (2022: US$496,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

RMAFERERLIT |

MNIREH R - RIBE20138E R AEFT &
] 1T 5 /9 B AR #E 42 8 528,850,000
(2022% : 12,850,000) °

RIREH R - R D F R 15 Z%201388
% % 51 & 18 7 17 ££29,600,00017 B8
RE-BERARTDBEEERERE
EHTHERTEBRESEHHT
29,600,0007~ 2 5] & 8 I K B IR 2N
#2,611,0003 7t (FNBREITE MHAD) ©

ERAERHEERENLAFTES
997,00058 7T (§140.1778 jt) (2022
% :1,267,0008 T ' §10.218
gt)  HEhAREERE E£20235F 124
1B L FERIERERME274,000
E 7T (20224 : 496,000E JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(a)

(b)

162

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted. The key
parameters used in the Model and the corresponding fair
values of the share options granted during 2023 and 2022
are listed below:

26. MR 7~ fE & R 5T &) (&)

(a) MM #ETE (&)

AARFEAZEHITEER (X))
FEERENERRE - R2023K
2022FAEREBRENAFER
FEAKEXNEIESZHIBEUOT :

2023 2023 2022
25 May 24 March 22 June
Date of grant REBH 5H25H 3H24H 6H22H
Number of share options ERBEREHRE 5,400 500 5,900
granted (in thousand units) (KA F1uzt)
Total share option value BRERAE
- HK$’000 —FET 887 110 1,267
- US$’000 equivalent ~-TEREE 114 14 163
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R BEHRE (Bx) 0.455 0.500 0.510
Closing price immediately SLEREBAIZWHE 0.455 0.580 0.520
before the date of grant (HK$) (&7T)
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (Bx) 0.463 0.546 0.530
Expected life of options (years) BRENTEHRE (F) 2 3-4 3-4
Annualised volatility FERE 76.9%  77.2%-83.6% 71.6%-79.3%
Risk-free interest rate 12 [ b Rl 2= 3.64%  2.79%-2.84% 3.46%-3.47%
Dividend payout rate REE 2.33% 2.33% 2.97%

The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the
fair values of European share options. The fair values
calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the Model
used. The value of a share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of a share option.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily closing share prices over the
last few years.

The Share Grant

There was no share award granted during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 87 of the
financial statements.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2023, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of US$51,849,000 (2022: US$72,051,000),
subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses arising
in Mainland China of US$10,637,000 (2022: US$1,664,000),
subject to the agreement by the relevant taxation authority,
that will expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due
to unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subjected to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future.

27

28.

=N b e

R

REERFERUNFEZHEREBFE
BN BHRREGTHGSREZERA -

EEFREH

A2023F12A31B " AEBEEBE
4 YR TE R B 1E B 18 551,849,000 T
(20224 : 72,051,000 7T) (EE&BBH
RERE)  ZESHEBETVERHRE
WEELEFBN QTN RRERBFE -
AEBNTREEDPEAREESEWARERHRE
E53810,637,0003 7t (20224 : 1,664,000
En) (BEFEEBEEERE) » 25/
BHEBEREFERRER  WHREREES
EHER DA TR RREZHAE - ANEE
FEB SR SR FERR B R 2RR - B UL FE R
EFEERAELEHEEE -

AR2023%F 12318 K2022F12H318 -
BMERREBRPEAFZERIZNHELT
AHMMENBNARELBRNEHMTEINS
 ZERB AT
FRAGBERTERRRDREBEF -

Trade and other payables 29, FE {3 X & H b FE S =X
2023 2022
Notes US$°000 US$’000
FiEE FEn Ep
Trade payables R (a) 8,610 15,807
Accrued expenses and other payables FESTRA S R H A R 5K 13,140 17,825
Contract liabilities eEHNEE (b) 3,282 6,346
Contract liabilities from a related party BEMEEHNEaE 36(a) 456 4,224
Refund liabilities BRRERE 1,420 1,145
26,908 45,347
SfyEBEEAR | 2023555 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M R

29. Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2023, the ageing analysis of the trade payables

based on invoice dates is as follows:

29.

BARREAMENSK(E)
5T

(a) M2023%F12H31H ' BARUBEZRH
WERER 2AMTAT ¢

2023 2022

US$’000 US$’000

FEx EYH

1 - 30 days 1-30H 3,891 7,939
31 - 60 days 31-60H 3,529 3,422
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 765 4,096
Over 90 days ##HiE90H 425 350
8,610 15,807

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

BARBEEE-—RNEARNGEE -

(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) EHNBENHEBNOT :
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
12H31H 12A31H 1H1H
US$’000 US$’000 USs$’000
SFE EpH E
Advances received from customers WERE F 2l R E

Sales of ICs $HEICs 3,282 6,346 6,350

Advances received from a related party U EXE8 B 5 = Fa R TR B
Sales of ICs $HEICs 456 4,224 -
3,738 10,570 6,350

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver
semiconductor products. The decrease in contract liabilities
in 2023 was mainly due to the decrease in advances received.
The increase in contract liability in 2022 was mainly due to the
increase in advances received.

30. Interest-bearing bank borrowings

At 31 December 2023, the Group had bank loans of
US$1,657,000 (2022: US$1,421,000) in connection with a PRC
subsidiary. The amount is denominated in RMB which has been
settled before the date of this report bearing interest at a rate
of 2.5% per annum (2022:1.4% per annum).

31. Banking facilities

At 31 December 2023, the Group had banking facilities
amounted to US$27.3 million (2022: US$26.3 million) and
US$13.6 million (2022: US$12.9 million) was unutilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to
US$14.0 million (2022: US$12.9 million) to banks in connection
with facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million
(2022: US$8.0 million) was utilised as at 31 December 2023.

33. Notes to consolidated statement of cash
flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions and
modification to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of US$1,237,000 (2022: US$842,000) and US$1,237,000
(2022: US$842,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased properties.

During the year, the Group had non-cash termination
of an existing lease of office property, resulting in a
derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of US$257,000 and US$246,000, respectively, and
corresponding recognition of a loss on lease termination of
US$11,000.

(b) Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing activities

=N b e

32. FAREE

AATEHMBFHELTNMERIRITIR
HAEEERI4.0E8EETT (2022F 1 12.9
BEER)  ZBEMN2023F128318E
BRAEPS.0EEXE T (2022F : 8.05E

ETT) °

WBaERERERME

() EEFHREXS

FR AEERZHEENENS
AEEENHESEENIRERE
R 1B 5T 2 Bl 51,237,000 Jt (2022
£ : 842,000 jt) #1,237,0003 T
(20224 : 842,000E )

FR AEERBEVENFERES
ENMHEEEWIIRESKILAED R
£257,0003 T #M246,000% T » A
HWRAIEHEEEK11,000% T ©

(b) MEZBHEHREE ARSI

2023 2023
Pledged
bank Lease
deposits Borrowings liabilities
2K
BITER BX HEAE
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
FER FEr FER
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 6,041 1,421 1,996
Changes from financing cash 28R & RENWE (L
flows - - (1,425)
New leases HEE - - 740
Lease modification on EREH 2 HEEET
extending lease term - - 497
Early termination of lease REAILEEES
arrangement - - (246)
Foreign exchange movement [E =R & & - - (56)
Release of pledged deposits HEE E K IHRITER (41) - -
Interest expense FEXH - = 63
Interest paid classified as ENFNEsEAKE
operating cash flows RERE - — (63)
Drawdowns of bank S EURITE R
borrowings - 1,657 -
Repayments of bank EERITEN
borrowings - (1,421) -
At 31 December 2023 AR2023F12A831H 6,000 1,657 1,506
SriyHEEERAE | 2023FF% 165



33. Notes to consolidated statement of cash

flows (continued)

(b) Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing

(c)

activities (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

BEHRERERERWE (H)

(b) MEETHERZEE BEZL (A

2022 2022
Pledged Lease
bank deposits  Borrowings liabilities
[EE LN
RITER B HESE
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
ETT E3 ETT
At 1 January 2022 20221818 17,000 181 2,531
Changes from financing cash EER&RENE (L
flows - - (1,231)
Release of pledged bank BRI 2R IRITER
deposits (10,959) - -
New leases MEE - - 699
Lease modification on ERMBEHEZHEERT
extending lease term - - 143
Foreign exchange movement [ER%&E) - - (70)
Interest expense AME X H - - 81
Interest paid classified as EFFESEAKE
operating cash flows BHeRE - - (81)
COVID-19-related rent 2019 B AR mE R AEE
concession from lessor HERR - - (76)
Drawdowns of bank XEURITER
borrowings - 1,421 -
Repayments of bank EERITEN
borrowings - (181) -
At 31 December 2022 2022 12831H 6,041 1,421 1,996

Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the

(C) *ﬂﬁiﬁ.ﬁlm H:II %@gﬁ
ReEREXRTEENEERERHE

statement of cash flows is as follows: BT -
2023 2022
US$’000 us$’ 000
Within operating activities EREZEH 109 145
Within financing activities EREEEH 1,425 1,231
1,534 1,376
34, Commitments 34, & IE
Capital commitments BRI
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet provided for at RIPEHR  EHESHENKRBANE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: AHAZIEHMT :
2023 2022
US$’000 us$’ 000
Property, plant and equipment M BERHRE 2,297 680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=N b e

35. @ T BIRER
SERNSMITARRE BRAEDT |

35. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2023
Financial assets ERMEE

Financial asset at
fair value through
Financial asset at other

fair value through ~ comprehensive
profit or loss income
BATEETA BRATEETA
Bi Htt2EREMN
SREE SREE
Mandatorily Financial
designated Equity assets at
as such investment amortised cost Total
BRRER AT
BEMREE RERE ENeREE @t
US$°000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$000
TET TETL TET TE7
Equity investment at fair value A FERA
through other comprehensive  Eft2 AW EH
income RERE - 1,161 - 1,161
Financial assets included in ~ BEWFH R At el A
trade and other receivables ~ £REE - - 26,802 26,802
Financial asset at fair value ~ RAPEFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE 2,522 - - 2,522
Pledged bank deposits BEANRITER - - 6,000 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BERBEZEN - - 80,339 80,339
2,522 1,161 113,141 116,824
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RESH AT E
HEmas
us$’000
Financial liabilities cREE ETT
Financial liabilities included in trade Bk EMEARA
and other payables HemaE 15,376
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFFEER 1,657
17,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R AR Y EE

35. Financial instruments by category
(continued)

2022
Financial assets

3B. eMITEZER (&)

2022
THEE

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BLOFEEFA
Hitrz2EKEH
SREE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
BB ARG
RERE BENEREE st
US$’000 Us$’000 US$°000
SEY SEY SEY
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hit 2 E RN
comprehensive income RERE 1,161 - 1,161
Financial assets included in WK Lt ERZR ALK
trade and other receivables £REE - 40,286 40,286
Pledged bank deposits EHEANRITER - 6,041 6,041
Cash and cash equivalents BRE&REEEEY - 45,556 45,556
1,161 91,883 93,044

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RESH AT E
NEmas
= Us$’000
Financial liabilities A=K FET

Financial liabilities included in trade FEA SR H A AT R A
and other payables Wemas 25,092
Interest-bearing bank borrowing IRITFFEER 1,421
26,513
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Related parties transactions

(@)

China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), a state-
owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC,
through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Huada
Semiconductor Co. Ltd., owns approximately 28.3% of the
issued shares of the Company and is thus a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Transactions between the
Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC are
regarded as transactions with related parties.

CEC is a state-owned entity which is subject to the control
of the State Council of the PRC Government. The Group
had the following individually significant or collectively
significant transactions with the PRC government-related
entity during the year:

(i) The Group enters into extensive sale transactions
with the state-controlled entity, which are controlled
by the State Council of the PRC Government through
its government authorities, in the normal course of
business on commercial terms. Approximately 37%
of the Group’s sales for the year were came from this
state-controlled entity.

The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

=N b e

36. BT X5H

(@) HEEFEEEXEEERAF (F
HEF ) REERBNTEHRBG
EENEAEFEMRMEEER
BBEZENBAREAYERA
PR B R £928.3% N A R 2 BITHR
7 DEARBDZEERR - AEEHE
CECH{BARIHEBBANRZEK
BT S ©

TEEFRAERER  XRHEBRFR

B ES o £ AEEEBDEBA
HRAEREUTERNEAHKEREX

SETE

() AEBEREFBXEBBEPREHE
R R B L EZH
HWERS  ZFSEBIHATEK
F B # B i 18 H BR AT e A 2 ) o
REBFRNHI7%HHEEFAR
BRZERZHER

UTRER/BEBH 25 -

2023 2022
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiaE FEx FET
Sales: HER :
Subsidiary of CEC FEREFHORNBA (i) 56,534 71,151
Associate of CEC FEIEFRBE A (ii) 844 3,121
Rental service charges: HERBEE :
Subsidiary of CEC FREFHHEAA (iil) 30 15
Software and IT services charges: #iff &{2 BRIMTIRGE -
Subsidiaries of CEC FREFHNEAA (iv) 293 286
Notes: B &t

(i)  This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products (“IC Products”) from the Group to
CEACI during the year ended 31 December 2023, based on
the agreement dated 22 October 2020 (the “IC Products
Supply Agreement”), as subsequently amended on 23
March 2021 and 6 May 2022 entered into between the
Company and CEACI. The IC Products Supply Agreement
has a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023. The IC Products supply transactions
contemplated under the IC Products Supply Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules and the Company
has complied with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

() ERFRIIREALDQTECEACIFTE] I
HE 520205108228 WtH: (T1C
ERHEHZE] RE%ZR2021F3
H238 K20226586 R 55T » A&
EARZE 2023F12A31BLLEER
CEACIHEEICK e EzeE & ([ICE
RN ELE - ICEREERS
WEIR A =% H2021FE1A18 2
2023 F12H31H ° ICE Rt FEH =
BTERETHICEREERZER
FHARABEBTAQBANERRISE

BERXS MALACHZEER
REEREXZET EHHRRBKE

BRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M R

36. Related parties transactions (continued)

(@)

(b)

170

3. B A X% ()

(continued) (@) (%)

Notes: (continued) #iat - (&)

(i) This represented the transaction amount for the supply of (i) EREXAKEEPCECH — &
IC and driver products from the Group to an associated @ﬂ{%@lC&%ﬁ@)%ﬁEﬁ:E’ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ
company of CEC which constituted a related party HoOABEXZBREBIRXZMIE
transaction and not a continuing connected party transaction ERRBET WA Eﬁﬁkix% °
under the Listing Rules.

(i) This represented the rental service charges from a subsidiary (i) ERRCECH—RMEB AR @ALE
of CEC to the Group which constituted a fully exempt ERRNWEEREE  EEXZE
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. gt THREABEBTHNEZERRFER

5o

(iv) This represented the software and IT services charges from vy EXNERPESFHHBIR@AE
subsidiaries of CEC to the Group which constituted a fully BB E G REERMTREE
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing FERGERLTRETHNZ2E
Rules. HREFERERS -

The following were balances arising from such sales/ HEEE REEANERE

purchases:

2023 2022
Notes US$’000 UsS$’000
MIaE FTEr EH
Trade receivables: e 23
Subsidiary of CEC EPI*?E’JMTE’D\T 4,856 4,267
Associate of CEC FEEFREBEA 82 267
Prepayments: FEATRK : 23
Subsidiaries of CEC FEEFHHREAR 221 221
Contract liabilities: aHRE[E: 29
Subsidiary of CEC FEEFHHE A A 456 4,224

Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) *EEXTEEEASWERMH :

Group:

2023 2022

US$°000 US$’000

FEx ET

Director fee EEWEE - _
Salaries, allowance, bonuses and other e 0B BAKR

benefits HuER 1,662 1,960

Pension scheme contributions RIS FT B 44 49

Share-based payment expense AR X 99 146

Total compensation paid to key Eﬁi%" BABZ

management personnel e ECEG 1,805 2,155

Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

The transactions in respect of the above compensation of
key management personnel of the Group were exempted
from continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. Statement of financial position and

reserves of the Company

=N b e

3. KA BRR KR FHE

(a) Statement of financial position (a) B#EMRRF
2023 2022
US$’000 US$’000
FEx EYe
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRINERE 55,209 55,209
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables FE LR I EL A B UK 52 50
Amounts due from subsidiaries i = PNCTE 3,244 2,647
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREeEED 236 171
Total current assets REBEELS 3,532 2,868
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries S B A R 6,629 6,357
Accrued expenses and other payables BERHEMENSRK 189 259
Total current liabilities e EERATT 6,818 6,616
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE (3,286) (3,748
NET ASSETS EEFHE 51,923 51,461
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the AATESEEFEA
Company iR
Issued capital B2 EITIRA 32,166 32,149
Reserves R 19,757 19,312
Total equity R 51,923 51,461
SMPYEEERAR | 202FFg 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR Y EE

37. Statement of financial position and

3. KD AUMBRR KR FHE

reserves of the Company (continued) (%)
(b) Reserves (b) f#fE
Equity
Share compensation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
e

A7 fE B RitEE et

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

TER FER FER TEx

At 1 January 2022 M2022%F1 818 106,859 17,897 (102,563) 22,193
Loss for the year FREE - - (184) (184)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEE - - (184) (184)
2021 final dividend paid 2021 FEREIRE (3,219) - - (3,219)
Equity-settled share option arrangements R 7 1 2% 3R - 496 - 496
Exercise of share options TREBRE 36 (10) - 26
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831H 103,676 18,383 (102,747) 19,312
At 1 January 2023 R2023F181H 103,676 18,383 (102,747) 19,312
Profit for the year FREF - - 151 151
Total comprehensive income 2HEKRLG - - 151 151
Equity-settled share option arrangements PR 7 4 2k SR A - 274 - 274
Exercise of share options TREERE 30 (10) - 20
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12831H 103,706 18,647 (102,596) 19,757

38. Approval of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 20 March 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBERE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
US$ million BEBX T
Sales HE 153.2 190.8 168.1 121.3 108.3
Gross profit ER 46.3 65.5 67.3 35.8 21.3
Net profit/(loss) FRA (B8) 19.4 27.8 23.7 11.7 (27.8)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
- Total assets -REE 157.4 158.3 139.9 94.2 76.9
- Total liabilities -MmeE 30.5 491 53.2 30.8 25.6
- Shareholders’ funds -REESR 126.9 109.2 86.7 63.4 51.3
US cents =1l
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF/ (&#E)
- Basic (i) — HLAK(j) 0.8 1.1 1.0 0.5 1.1)
- Diluted (i) — % i) 0.8 1.1 1.0 0.5 1.1)
Dividends per share BREE - - 0.1 0.1 -
Net assets per share () BREEFMHE() 5.09 4.38 3.48 2.56 2.07

(i) The basic earnings/(loss) and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,480,252,351,
2,480,302,624, 2,488,069,886, 2,493,903,036 and 2,495,151,529 ordinary shares in issue during each of the
years ended 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

BREXAERN (BER)REREEZEEDHEERZ20195F + 20205 ~ 20214  2022F K2023F128310 1t
FESENERITZERMEFYHE2,480,252,351% ~ 2,480,302,624 /% ~ 2,488,069,886 /% &%2,493,903,036 48 &
2,495,151,5208 5t & o

(i) For 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share information is based on
2,480,252,351, 2,480,516,010, 2,490,824,465, 2,495,276,295 and 2,495,151,529 ordinary shares, respectively,
which are the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all
dilutive/potential share options outstanding during the year.

20195 ~ 20204 ~ 20214 ~ 2022F 20235 SRBEEF (FiE) WE R 2 5#2,480,252,3511% »
2,480,516,0100% ~ 2,490,824,465M% ~ 2,495,276,2950% 22,495,151, 529 R Z BRI E  MEREBEEN (HE)
DDREBREAMEBERITEERECFERNABRZCBITINETESEERTE -

RMAXERERLT

2023F F iR

173



DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

2013 Share Option
Scheme

201308 R =T &

Augmented Reality (AR)

Board
=g

Cayman lIslands
Companies Law

MEHS QAR

CEC
FEET

Code Provision(s)
SF R 3L

The share option scheme approved by
shareholders for adoption at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2013

Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

Augmented reality is an enhanced
version of the real physical world
that is achieved through the use of
digital visual elements, sound, or
other sensory stimuli delivered via
technology.

Board of Directors

Companies Act (Revised), Cap. 22 of
the Cayman Islands, as amended or
re-enacted from time to time

CEAC International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CECI, and a connected person of
the Company

China Electronics Corporation, a
state-owned information technology
conglomerate under the administration
of the central government of the
PRC, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company through its interests in
Huada

Y PEEKREEREERAT (CEC
Technology Co., Ltd.*™), a company
established in the PRC and an indirect
subsidiary of the CEC, and a connected
person of the Company

Code provision(s) in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission is a
private sector initiative that has issued
internationally recognized internal
control frameworks

Chinese Yuan, Renminbi
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Company
PN

Current ratio
BN =
Director(s)
BEx

Debt to equity ratio
B R
ESL
ETHRER
Gearing ratio
EESELR
Group

REHE

HES
EANK

HK$/HKD
BT

Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR
B8

HKAS
ERETEL

HKFRS
BEMBREER

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

Solomon Systech (International)
Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities

The director(s) of the Company

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

Electronic Shelf Label

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

The Company and its subsidiaries

EtFmERADKXEHERLDE (Beijing
Huada Empyrean Technology Co.,
Ltd.**), a company established in the
PRC, and a connected person of the
Company

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, or collectively for HKAS
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Huada Semiconductor Co. Ltd., a
PRC company with limited liability
to consolidate all IC businesses
under CEC group. It is a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Integrated Circuit

Intellectual Property

BERAR

RPEAYERERAR  —KKINBE
HENERAT  HRERBERXAER
Lt

RBEERBERUADEERE

KRFRZESE

TR R E R LR S

S RER

iy

%

7]

RITFF B E R AR RS

RATREME R F

ERERANRBEERLE  —HKRH
BRMHDNE BAQBNEEAL

BET
HE B RITHE

BBERTER
BB BMEER  AFBEFEAUR
BEMBREEINGERE

EARYERBRNT » —RCECHESIE
TICEEMAZRHPENERIF - A
RAZEERR

R
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

JPY
HJT

KRW
BT

LCD

Listing Rules
EmRA

LTPS

LLC
BRAF

Metaverse

Model Code
BT

NTD
e

OLED

PMOLED

PRC/Mainland China
Rl B K PE

R&D

S&D
HER D H

SFO

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Liquid Crystal Display

The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Low Temperature Polysilicon, a
technology for the manufacturing of
TFT-LCD

Limited liabilities company

Metaverse is a digital reality that
combines aspects of social media,
online gaming, augmented reality
(AR), virtual reality (VR), and
cryptocurrencies to allow users to
interact virtually.

Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules

New Taiwan dollars

Organic Light Emitting Diode

Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting
Diode

The People’s Republic of China, for
the purpose of this report, excluded
Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administration Regions and Taiwan

Product design, development and
engineering

Selling and Distribution

Securities and Futures Ordinance
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY
BERAR

the Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong &EBHAEXZHERAE
B8 32 P Limited

TDDI Touch and Display Driver Integration fif 12 B 23 R BR Eh B8 SR A

TFT Thin Film Transistor BIRERE

‘;@K United Kingdom REBEEH

S%S United States of America EZFBRER

Us$/UsSbD
e

US dollars ESEb

Virtual Reality is the use of computer ERBEEEFNASMKEMAIZEEERRE
Virtual Reality (VR) technology to create a simulated
environment.

**

for identification purposes only
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

NERBRRER

Financial Calendar

Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
20 March 2024

Share Listing

Listing Venue and Date

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,495,652,351 (as at 31 December 2023)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Third Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,

P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-11083,

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Legal Advisor
Loeb & Loeb LLP
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Board Members

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Kang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Kong (appointed on 1 November 2023)

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing (appointed on 1 November 2023)

Mr. Leung Heung Ying (resigned with effect from 1 November 2023)
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu (resigned with effect from 1 November 2023)

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Mr. Yu Chon Man

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant
Mr. Yu Chon Man
CPA, FCCA

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations
Email: ir@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office

Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre
3 Science Park East Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111

Fax: (852) 2267 0800

Website
www.solomon-systech.com
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

NERBRRER

This 2023 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has
been posted on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports,
summary financial reports (where applicable), interim reports,
summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of meeting,
listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company’s
website and for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the
Annual Report posted on the Company’s website will promptly upon
request be sent by post the Annual Report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of
receipt of the Company’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report
or change their choice of means of receipt of the Corporate
Communications by sending reasonable notice in writing to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
or by sending an email to solomon2878-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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